BOARD MEETING:	Regular
DATE:	Wednesday, March 18, 2020
TIME:	6:00 p.m.
PLACE:	Naples High School Cafeteria

. Meeting Called to Order

II. <u>Roll Call</u>

- III. Adopt the Agenda of the Regular Meeting of March 18, 2020
- IV. Executive Session
- V. Pledge of Allegiance
- VI. <u>Public Comments</u>: The Board of Education invites you, the residents of our school community, to feel comfortable in sharing matters of interest or concern that you might have with us. The Board President will be happy to recognize those of you who wish to speak. We would ask that you come forward and please identify yourself before presenting your thoughts.

Those items brought to the attention of the Board during this time may be taken under consideration for future response or action. (*Individual comments will be limited to three minutes.*)

As a matter of courtesy, we ask that issues related to specific School District personnel or students be brought to the attention of the Superintendent of Schools privately. Thank you for this consideration.

<u>Board Response</u>: The Board of Education is committed to keeping communication open and transparent. The Board of Education President will be working with the Board and the Superintendent to make every effort to respond to public comments directed to the Board of Education at previous meetings, during the next scheduled meeting.

VII. Points of Interest

- Update on the Coronavirus
- Budget Update
- X. Minutes
 - Regular Meeting of March 4, 2020
- X. Contractual Agreement
 - Memorandum of Agreement: CSEA
 - Memorandum of Agreement: CSEA
- XI. Capital Improvement Project
- SEQR Resolution
- XII. <u>Business</u>
 - Naples Grape Festival
 - Facility Use Request
 - Transportation Request
- XIII. Personnel
 - Resignation:
 - Groundskeeper/Auto Mechanic
 - Teacher Aide
 - Appointment:
 - Cleaner
 - Teacher Assistant
 - Family Leave of Absence
 - English Teacher

-XIV.	Consent Agenda Items
-------	----------------------

- CSE Recommendations
- Volunteers
- XV. Adjournment

- (Board Action)
- Code of Conduct
- Treasurer's Report
- Standard Work Day

(Board Action)

(Board Action)

(Board Action)

(Board Action) (Board Action)

(Board Action)

(Board Action)

(Board Action) (Board Action)

Regular Meeting

90

Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Education of Naples Central School held on Wednesday, March 18, 2020 at 6:01 p.m. in the Naples High School Cafeteria.

Members Present:	Robert Brautigam Joseph Callaghan Carter Chapman Jacob Hall	Kelley Louthan Steven Mark Gail Musnicki Maura Sullivan
Members Absent:	Thomas Hawks	

Also Present: Matthew Frahm, Jeffrey Black and Pamela Claes.

A quorum being present, the meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m. by Board President Jacob Hall.

Motion: 2 nd :	Kelley Louthan Steven Mark
Resolved, that	the Board of Education approves the agenda of the Regular Meeting of
	20 as presented.
Voting Yes:	8 Motion Carried
Voting No:	0
Motion: 2 nd :	Carter Chapman Gail Musnicki
- •	the Board of Education approves calling an executive session at 6:01 p.m. for the
	cussing the employment history of a particular person or persons.
Voting Yes:	8 Motion Carried
Voting No:	0
Time out of B	Executive Session: 6:24 p.m.

Public Comments: None

Points of Interest:

Board Member Kelley Louthan stated it was really awesome that all the administrators and staff here at school were able to pull everything together for the students.

Board President Jacob Hall stated it has been fun to watch his children participating in Zoom classrooms, seeing screens with their entire class, adding it's a neat use of technology and he was glad the board and the District supported one-to-one devices for the students across our district.

1st Vice President Joseph Callaghan asked if there were many homes without internet. Superintendent Frahm stated the District had collected that information a couple of years ago, however it is not up to date, so we do not have an accurate understanding of families who do or don't have regular access to internet.

Superintendent Recognitions & Updates:

Superintendent Frahm updated the board on what the District is doing for students, such as food deliveries for the district students, noting the District is able to provide free breakfast and lunch for all children ages 0-18, adding they do not need to be enrolled at Naples Central School.

Regular Meeting

Board Member Kelley Louthan suggested sending out a mailing to families. Superintendent Frahm stated a paper information notice had been sent home with all students. Board President Jacob Hall commended the District for a job well done.

Mr. Frahm noted this period of isolation can be really hard for people, adding we need to reach out and stay as connected as we can. Board Member Kelley Louthan asked what options were available for counseling supports. Superintendent Frahm there were plans to check in on students, adding the District also has a safe schools help line that allows a student to speak with someone if they are struggling and the District receives a report and so we are able to provide support in that way. Mr. Frahm stated the District is looking into ways to connect with staff and students.

Superintendent Frahm stated it is a possibility the 1st meeting in April will be a Zoom meeting, adding he will let the board know what plans will be.

Interim School Business Administrator Black presented a Budget Update. Dr. Black stated there will be a budget committee meeting before the next board meeting and then we will have two additional weeks for any feedback to make adjustments in the budget, noting the budget will be put before the board for approval at the second meeting in April. Dr. Black then presented budgetary highlights of the 2020-2021 School Budget, noting revenues are still in flux, adding if the state budget passes there may be changes by the Governor in June, stating we will have to be very conservative with the amount of state aid we expect to receive. Board discussion followed pertaining to information presented.

Board President Jacob Hall added a point of interest, stating the presentation of Guys and Dolls by the High School students was very well done, adding directors Julie Austin, Margaret Crab and Hannah Fox did a wonderful job.

Motion:Steven Mark2nd:Kelley LouthanResolved, that the Board of Education approves the minutes of the following meeting:• Regular Meeting of March 4, 2020Voting Yes:8Voting No:0

Motion: Kelley Louthan 2nd: Gail Musnicki

Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the following Contractual Agreement resolutions as presented:

• Resolved, that the Naples Central School District Board of Education does hereby approve a Memorandum of Agreement between the Naples CSEA and the Naples Central School District pertaining to salary and/or regular daily wage or base rate of employees in the Association during the period of any Federal, State, or Local government closure of schools due to COVID-19.

Voting Yes:	8	
Voting No:	0	
Abstentions:	0	

Motion Carried

92

Motion:Maura Sullivan2nd:Joseph CallaghanResolved, that the Board of Education approves the following Contractual Agreementresolutions as presented:

• Resolved, that the Naples Central School District Board of Education does hereby approve a Memorandum of Agreement between the Naples CSEA and the Naples Central School District pertaining to compensation to be paid to certain bargaining unit members from the Maintenance Department who normally work the day shift but on occasion may be asked to work the night shift.

Voting Yes:	8	Motion Carried
Voting No:	0	
Abstentions:	0	

Motion: Robert Brautigam 2nd: Kelley Louthan

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the Naples Central School District desires to embark upon a \$100,000 capital outlay project at the District, which includes reconstruction at the Naples Elementary School, identified as the following project:

Elementary School: SED No: 43-12-01-04-0-002-016

WHEREAS, the reconstruction work involves selective removal of existing, and replacement of HVAC Controls at the Naples Elementary School (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is subject to classification under the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA);

WHEREAS, replacement, rehabilitation or reconstruction of a structure or a facility, in kind on the same site, including upgrading buildings to meet building or fire codes are classified as Type II under the current Department of Environmental Conservation SEQR Regulations (6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(2);

WHEREAS, routine activities such as renovations to, or expansions of existing public school facilities are classified as Type II Actions under the current Department of Environmental Conservation SEQR Regulations (6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(8));

WHEREAS, the SEQR Regulation (6 NYCRR §617.5[a]) declares Type II Actions to be actions that have no significant impact on the environment and require no further review under SEQR; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Education, as lead agency, has determined that this renovation project is classified as a Type II Action pursuant to 6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(1), (2) and (8) of the SEQR Regulations;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Education of the Naples Central School District hereby declares itself as "Lead Agency", specifically pursuant to 6 NYCRR §617.6(b), for the proposed Project;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education hereby declares that the Project is a Type II Action, which requires no further review under SEQR; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Education hereby authorizes the Superintendent of Schools to forward an official copy of this Resolution to the New York State Education Department, if necessary, together with a copy of correspondence to and from the New York State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation in connection with its request for approval of the Project from the New York State Education Department.

Duly put to a vote as follows:

AYES	8	NAYS	ABSTENTIONS
Robert Brautigam	Kelley Louthan		
Joseph Callaghan	Steven Mark		
Carter Chapman	Gail Musnicki		
Jacob Hall	Maura Sullivan		

Motion:	Kelley Louthan
2 nd :	Steven Mark

Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School District Board of Education approves the following Business resolutions as presented:

- Resolved, that authorization is given for the use of facilities for the Naples Grape Festival, from Friday, September 25, 2020 at 5:00 p.m., and continuing through Sunday, September 27, 2020 including all previous requirements and restrictions.
- Resolved, that approval be given for a transportation request from Donna Nichols-Scott for the use of one (1) bus and driver for the Naples Grape Festival for Saturday, September 26, 2020 and Sunday, September 27, 2020, at the driver's normal per diem rate of pay plus a bonus of \$100.
- Authorization is given to approve the Code of Conduct for the Naples Central School District per the requirements of the Project SAVE Legislation (Education Law Sections 2801 and 100.2.1 of the Commissioner's Regulations.)
- Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the Treasurer's monthly reports for the periods ending January 2020.
- Resolved, that the Naples Central School District hereby establishes the following as Standard Work Day for Chaperones and will report days worked to the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System based on the time keeping system or the record of activities maintained and submitted by these members to the clerk of this body:

- Chaperones – Six (6) hours

Voting Yes:8Motion CarriedVoting No:0

Motion: Maura Sullivan

2nd: Gail Musnicki

Be it Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School District Board of Education approves the following personnel item as presented:

• Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the resignation of Adam Fitzgerald, Groundkeeper/ Auto Mechanic, contingent upon his appointment as Building Maintenance Mechanic, effective February 17, 2020.

94 **Regular** Meeting

- · Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the resignation of Deborah Wordingham, Teacher Aide, effective March 19, 2020, contingent upon her appointment as Teacher Assistant, effective March 19, 2020.
- · Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School District Board of Education approves the following probationary appointments, pending a successful background clearance report provided to the school as a result of the fingerprinting process:
 - Jacob Hamsher, 25 East Avenue, Wayland, NY 14572, as a Cleaner, effective March 30, 2020, at the rate of \$11.80/hour.
 - Deborah Wordingham, 6142 Cook School Road, Prattsburgh, NY 14873, as a Teacher Assistant, effective March 19, 2020, at the rate of \$14.50/hour.
- Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the amended request of Therese Marble, English Teacher, for an unpaid family leave of absence commencing from the end of her paid pregnancy related disability leave through June 30, 2020, with benefits continuing throughout her leave as per leave as per the family medical leave act, anticipated delivery date on or around March 11, 2020.

Voting Yes:	8	Motion Carried
Voting No:	0	

Motion: Gail Musnicki

 2^{nd} : Steven Mark

Resolved, that the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of Superintendent Matthew Frahm, approves the Consent Agenda Items as presented:

- a. Resolved, that the Board of Education accepts the committee recommendations from the following meetings:
 - Committee on Special Education actions of 02/27/2020; 03/04/2020; and 03/12/2020.
- b. Resolved, that the Board of Education hereby approves the following Volunteers:

Name	Position	Address
Tyler Vest	Volunteer	6681 County Road 12, Naples, NY 14512
Angela Gregory	Volunteer	33 Academy Street, Apt. #3, Naples, NY 14512

Voting Yes: 8 Voting No: 0

Motion Carried

Carter Chapman Motion: 2^{nd} : Kelley Louthan There being no further business, the Regular Meeting of March 18, 2020 is hereby adjourned at

6:53 p.m. Voting Yes:

Motion Carried

8 Voting No: 0

Dated this 18th day of March, 2020

is

Pamela Jo Claes, District Clerk

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL

Naples Jr/Sr High School Board of Education Report - March 2020

It's been a busy couple of months at school. From preparing for state exams, to college preparation, music in our schools, and project based learning, our students have been busy learning and growing as people. Below are a few highlights.



On March 26 and 27, seventh and eighth graders will have the opportunity to demonstrate their competence in ELA on NYS exams. The tests measure how well students are mastering necessary skills to graduate from high school and be successful in college and the workplace. They've worked hard to prepare and we look forward to seeing the results!

Mr. Murphy held a college information night on March 5 from 6:30-8:00 in the Library Conference Room for parents of 10th and 11th graders. Over 30 parents attended.





March is Music in Our Schools Month. Marching Band began practices and the department orchestrated a magnificent presentation of *Guys and Dolls*. Kudos to all involved!

Our 7th grade Project Based Learning (PBL) unit has picked up again with two work days in February as well as two more in March. Students are finalizing their S.T.E.A.M. projects as well as creating presentations, interactive pieces and take-aways to share at the upcoming NCS S.T.E.A.M. Showcase on Thursday, April 2nd from 12:20-



1:40 in the high school. Parents, community members, other students, and teachers are welcome to join our very own maker faire at Naples.

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL 136 NORTH MAIN STREET NAPLES, NEW YORK 14512



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT, entered into by and between NAPLES CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "Association") and the NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "District"), collectively referred to as the "parties".

WHEREAS, the District and the Association are parties to a collective bargaining agreement;

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a highly contagious disease that may temporarily require an alteration of the means by which students are educated in the District; and

WHEREAS, Ontario County, NY has declared an emergency and has required schools in the County to be closed to prevent the transmission of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the District recognizes the significant and negative impact this school closure will have on hourly employees in the Association; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and covenants herein contained, the parties stipulate and agree as follows:

- 1. The District has agreed to continue the salary and/or regular daily wage or base rate of employees in the Association during the period of any Federal, State, or Local government closure of schools due to COVID-19, if employees of the Association are prohibited from working or directed not to report to work by the District. The hours compensated when an employee is prohibited from working or directed not to report to work day, meaning it will not include overtime or duties done outside the regular work day.
- 2. In consideration, the Association agrees that the District shall exercise its discretion to determine which and how many employees will be required to report to work during the period of the COVID-19 closure to ensure the District can meet its operational needs, including, but not limited to, the safety and functioning of its school buildings and grounds, the delivery of required educational services and meeting the educational, physical, emotional and nutritional needs of its students.
- 3. If an Association member who is determined by the District to be required to report to work as per item 2, and feels that they are unable to work, they may request available leave time in the following order:

- For 12 Month Employees: Personal Time then Vacation Time. Vacation time is subject to approval by administration. Sick Time of more than one shift will be approved only with a signed and valid written medical excuse.
- For 10 Month Employees: Personal Time then Sick Time. Sick Time of more than one shift will be approved only with a signed and valid written medical excuse.

In the event an employee who is determined by the District to be required to report to work refuses to comply with that directive, the individual may use their personal, vacation or sick time as designated above. Once all of their personal, vacation or sick time has been depleted, the District reserves the right to designate the individual as unpaid.

- 4. The parties agree that work assignments, locations and hours may be temporarily altered during the COVID-19 closure to reflect and meet the changing needs of the District.
- 5. The parties further agree that the District may need to require Association members to work beyond the end of the regular school year up to June 30, 2020. In such a situation, the payment of wages during the COVID-19 closure in accordance with this Agreement shall be considered an advance of wages and no additional wages shall be paid to employees required to work beyond the end of the regular school year, unless an employee actually works beyond their contractual number of work days. (Example: An employee is contractually required to work 185 work days or their wages are annualized based on 185 work days. If school is closed for 10 work days and the employee does not work any of the 10 days of closure, the District <u>may</u> require the employee to work those 10 days through June 30, 2020 without additional compensation).

In any case where an employee actually works their maximum number of contractual work days, the employee will be paid their regular hourly rate for each hour of work performed. (Example: An employee is contractually required to work 185 work days or their wages are annualized based on 185 work days. If school is closed for 10 work days and the employee works 8 of the 10 days of closure, the District may require the employee to work 2 days through June 30, 2020 without additional compensation. Any days worked beyond 2 must be compensated at the employee's regular wage).

- 6. Employees of the Association <u>who are directed to report</u> to work who become ill should not report to work and should immediately inform a supervisor of their health status. Appropriate leave time may be used during the COVID-19 closure.
- 7. This Agreement supersedes all language in the collective bargaining agreement between the District and the Association as it relates to employee compensation and work assignments during the COVID-19 closure. It is not the intent of the Parties to alter any other language in the collective bargaining agreement.
- 8. The Parties agree that should this Agreement affect the implementation of other parts of the collective bargaining agreements, then the specific parties to the affected collective bargaining agreement shall meet to discuss how to minimize as much as possible the impact on both parties.

- 9. This Agreement will sunset and fully expire when Ontario County's declaration of an emergency expires and students return to school, but not later than June 30, 2020.
- 10. The parties further agree that this Agreement and the language herein, shall not be used to establish a practice, past practice or precedent in any matter whatsoever.
- 11. No provision or provisions of this memorandum may be added to, deleted or modified in any manner unless it is done so in writing and is signed by all the parties hereto.
- 12. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties on the issue addressed herein and supersedes all prior agreements or understandings, whether written or oral. The parties acknowledge that no representation, promise, inducement or statement of intention has been made by any party to this Agreement that is not embodied herein, and agree that no party shall be bound by, or liable for any alleged representation, promise, inducement or statement of intention not set forth in this Agreement.

FOR THE DISTRICT:

Matthew T. Frahm Superintendent

Jacob Hall, President, Board of Education

Date

Date

FOR THE ASSOCIATION:

Madalene Guererri President

3-18-20

Date

Paul Peters Labor Relations Specialist

Maney 17, 2020

Date

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL 136 NORTH MAIN STREET NAPLES, NEW YORK 14512



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT, entered into by and between NAPLES CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "Association") and the NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "District"), collectively referred to as the "parties".

WHEREAS, the parties have met to discuss the compensation to be paid to certain bargaining unit members from the Maintenance Department who normally work the day shift but on occasion may be asked to work the night shift; and

WHEREAS, the parties have reached a negotiated settlement to resolve this matter, were fully represented in such deliberations, and had all the terms and conditions herein contained thoroughly explained and fully understand the meaning thereof; and

WHEREAS, each party hereto has freely consented to enter into and to be bound by this Agreement, with such consent not having been induced by fraud, duress, or any other undue influence; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and covenants herein contained, the parties stipulate and agree as follows:

- The parties agree that any Cleaner or Custodian assigned by the District to regularly work a majority of their hours before 3:30 P.M. shall receive differential pay of forty-five (45) cents per hour for any hours worked after 3:30 P.M. when assigned to work the night shift.
- 2. This constitutes the full and complete agreement between the parties. This Agreement shall be effective September 16, 2019.
- 3. The parties agree that the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision hereto shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision.
- 4. No provision or provisions of this Agreement may be added to, deleted or modified in any manner unless in writing signed by all the parties hereto.

FOR THE DISTRICT

FOR THE CSEA

Jadalene K. Jun Madalene Guererri President

Dated: 3 18/20

Paul Peters Labor Relations Specialist

Dated: MANUA 18, 2020

Matthew T. Frahm Superintendent of Schools

Dated:

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL NAPLES, NEW YORK 14512



CODE OF CONDUCT

Policy Updated 2013, Contact Information Updated – August, 2016 Updated – February, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS:

I.	Introduction
II.	Definitionsp. 2
III.	Student Rights and Responsibilitiesp. 6
IV.	Essential Partnersp. 7
V.	Acceptable and Unacceptable Dressp. 9
VI.	Acceptable and Unacceptable Student Conduct/Languagep. 10
VII.	Reporting Violationsp. 13
VIII.	Disciplinary Interventions or Consequences, Procedures and Referrals p. 14
IX.	Remedial Responses to Violations of Code of Conduct p. 24
X.	Alternative Instruction
XI.	Discipline of Students with Disabilities p. 24
XII.	Standards and Procedures to Assure Security and Safety of Students and School Personnel p. 29
XIII.	Acceptable and Unacceptable Conduct, Dress and Language on School Property for Staff and Visitorsp. 30
XIV.	Dissemination of Code of Conduct p. 33

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT CODE OF CONDUCT

I. Introduction

The Board of Education ("Board") is committed to providing a safe and orderly school environment where students may receive and District personnel may deliver quality educational services without disruption or interference. Responsible behavior by students, teachers, other district personnel, parents and other visitors is essential to achieving this goal.

The District has a long-standing set of expectations for conduct on school property and at school functions. These expectations are based on the principles of civility, mutual respect, citizenship, character, tolerance, honesty and integrity.

The Board recognizes the need to clearly define these expectations for acceptable conduct on school property, to identify the possible consequences of unacceptable conduct, and to assure that discipline when necessary is administered promptly and fairly. To this end, the Board adopts this Code of Conduct ("Code").

This Code applies to all students, school personnel, parents, and other visitors when on school property or attending a school function.

II. Definitions

For purposes of this Code, the following definitions apply:

"Act of violence" is an act against a person that includes, but is not limited to, biting, hitting, kicking, punching, pushing and shoving, and scratching.

"Cyber-bullying" means harassment or bullying as defined below, where such harassment or bullying occurs through any form of electronic communication. It can involve, but is not limited to: sending mean, vulgar, or threatening messages or images; posting sensitive, private information about another person; pretending to be someone else in order to make that person look bad. The District's Policy on Student Harassment and Bullying Prevention and Intervention and its accompanying regulation provides more guidance regarding the definition and characteristics of Cyber-bullying.

"Dignity for all Students Act" or (DASA) was enacted in response to the increasing number of incidents involving harassed, ostracized and socially isolated students who, as a result of their maltreatment, engaged in dangerous behavior. The Dignity Act was signed into law to create a safe learning environment for our state's public school students. Under DASA, no student shall be subjected to discrimination based on their: actual or perceived race; color; weight; national origin; ethnic group; religion; religious practice; disability; sexual orientation; gender, or sex. The Dignity Act applies to all incidents on school property (in a school building, athletic playing field, playground, parking lot, school bus); The Dignity Act applies to public school functions (school extracurricular events or activities – on or off school property).

"**Disruptive student**" means a student under the age of 21 who is substantially disruptive of the educational process or substantially interferes with the staff member's authority over the classroom. "A substantial disruption" of the educational process or a substantial interference with a staff member's authority occurs when a student demonstrates a persistent unwillingness to comply with the staff member's instructions, or repeatedly violates the school or classroom rules.

"Discrimination" is the act of denying rights, benefits, equitable treatment or access to facilities available to all others, to an individual or group of people because of the group, class or category to which that person belongs (as listed under Harassment, below).

"Harassment and Bullying" as defined by DASA as amended defines harassment and bullying as the creation of a hostile environment by conduct or by verbal threats, intimidation or abuse (including cyber-bullying) that has or would have the effect of unreasonably and substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, opportunities or benefits, or mental, emotional or physical wellbeing; or conduct, verbal threats, intimidation or abuse that reasonably causes or would reasonably be expected to cause a student to fear for his or her physical safety. It also includes conduct that reasonably causes or would reasonably be expected to cause a student to fear for his or her physical safety. It also includes conduct that reasonably causes or would reasonably be expected to cause physical injury or emotional harm to a student; or conduct which occurs off school property and creates or would foreseeably create a risk of substantial disruption within the school environment, where it is foreseeable that the conduct, threats, intimidation or abuse might reach school property. The phrase "threats, intimidation or abuse" includes both verbal and non-verbal actions. The harassing behavior may be based on any characteristic, including but not limited to a person's actual or perceived:

- race,
- color,
- weight,
- age,
- national origin,
- ethnic group,
- religion,
- religious practice,
- disability,
- sex,
- sexual orientation, or
- gender (including gender identity and expression).
- <u>Gender identity</u> is one's self-conception as being male or female, as distinguished from actual biological sex or sex assigned at birth.
- <u>Gender expression</u> is the manner in which a person represents or expresses gender to others, often through behavior, clothing, hairstyles, activities, voice or mannerisms.

Specifically, harassment can include any verbal, written or physical conduct which offends, denigrates, or belittles any individual because of any of the characteristics described above. Such conduct includes, but is not limited to derogatory remarks, jokes, demeaning comments or behaviors, slurs, mimicking, name calling, graffiti, innuendo, gestures, physical contact, stalking, threatening, bullying, extorting, etc. The District's Policy on Student Harassment and Bullying Prevention and Intervention and its accompanying regulation provides more guidance regarding the definition and characteristics of Harassment and Sexual Harassment, in particular.

"Hazing" is a form of harassment among students defined as any intentional or reckless act directed against another for the induction, initiation or membership process in any school sponsored activity, organization, club, or team involving harassment which produces public humiliation, physical or emotional discomfort, bodily injury or public ridicule. Hazing of a student includes soliciting, encouraging, aiding, or engaging in "hazing" behavior as defined pursuant to District policy, regulation and/or law. Hazing is demeaning, abusive and/or illegal behavior that harms victims, and is inconsistent with the educational goals of the District by negatively impacting the school environment. Hazing of a student by another student or group of students is strictly prohibited on school property; in school buildings; on school buses; by school sponsored groups, clubs or teams; and at school sponsored events and/or activities whether occurring on or off-campus. Permission, consent or assumption of risk by an individual subjected to hazing shall not lessen the prohibitions contained in the policy. The District's Policy on Student Harassment and Bullying Prevention and Intervention and its accompanying regulation provides more guidance regarding the definition and characteristics of Hazing.

"Illegal/Inappropriate/Prohibited Substances" include but are not limited to, inhalants, marijuana, synthetic "marijuana" cannabinoids (*synthetic cannabinoids consist of plant material coated by chemicals that mimic THC, the active ingredient in marijuana*), cocaine, LSD, PCP, amphetamines, barbiturates, ecstasy, heroin, steroids, any substances commonly referred to as designer drugs, look-alikes, alcohol, tobacco (including any look alike products designed to mimic the effects of tobacco such as, but not limited to, electronic and vapor cigarettes), and prescription or over-the-counter drugs when possession or use has not been authorized in accordance with District policy and procedure or such are inappropriately used or shared with others.

"Plagiarism" is the use or close imitation of the language and ideas of another author and representation of them as one's own original work. This includes copying from electronic sources (from the World Wide Web), even with minor alterations.

"Retaliation" means when any member of the school community retaliates against any person who reports alleged harassment or against any person who testifies, assists or participates in an investigation, proceeding or hearing relating to such harassment. It is possible that an alleged harasser may be found to have retaliated even if the underlying complaint of harassment is not found to be a violation of this code of conduct. Retaliation includes, but is not limited to any form of intimidation, reprisal or harassment and may be redressed through application of the same reporting, investigation, and enforcement procedures as for harassment.

"School function" means any school-sponsored extra-curricular event or activity.

"School property" means in or within any building, structure, athletic playing field, playground, parking lot, or land contained within the real property boundary line of a public elementary or secondary school, or in or on a school bus, as defined in Vehicle and Traffic Law §142.

"Sexual Harassment" specifically means sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

- a) Submission to that conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of a student's education.
- b) Submission to or rejection of such conduct by a student is used as a component of the basis for decisions affecting that student.
- c) The conduct, on the basis of sex, could interfere with a student's educational performance and/or deny or limit a student's ability to participate in or to receive benefits, services or opportunities in the school's programs.

This applies whether the harassment is between people of the same or different gender. Sexual harassment can include, but is not limited to, verbal, written or physical conduct, directed at or related to a person's gender or gender expression, such as sexual gossip or personal comments of a sexual nature, sexually suggestive or foul language, sexual jokes, whistling, spreading rumors or lies of a sexual nature about someone, demanding sexual favors, forcing sexual activity by threat of punishment or offer of educational reward, obscene graffiti, display or sending of pornographic pictures or objects, touching, pinching, grabbing, kissing or hugging or restraining someone's movement in a sexual way. It also includes sexual violence which is defined as physical sexual acts perpetrated against a person's will or where a person is incapable of giving consent. Sexual violence as defined by New York Penal Law includes but is not limited to acts such as:

- a) Rape;
- b) Sexual assault;
- c) Sexual battery;
- d) Sexual coercion.

For purposes of this regulation, sexual harassment includes all verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature between a District employee, officer, volunteer, vendor or visitor and a student. With respect to sexual harassment between students, the verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature must be unwelcome to constitute harassment.

"Sexual Orientation" is defined as heterosexuality, homosexuality, bisexuality, or asexuality, whether actual or perceived.

"Threat" means an expression of intention to cause harm, do violence, intimidate, or punish.

"Violent student" means a student under the age of 21 who:

- 1. Commits, attempts, or threatens an act of violence upon a school employee.
- 2. Commits, attempts, or threatens an act of violence upon another student or any other person lawfully on school property or at a school function.
- 3. Possesses, while on school property or at a school function, a weapon.
- 4. Displays, while on school property or at a school function, what appears to be a weapon.
- 5. Threatens, while on school property or at a school function, to use a weapon.
- 6. Knowingly and intentionally damages or destroys the personal property of any school employee or any person lawfully on school property or at a school function.
- 7. Knowingly and intentionally damages or destroys school district property.

"Weapon" means a firearm as defined in 18 USC §921 for purposes of the Gun-Free Schools Act and the District weapons policy. It also means any other gun, BB gun, pistol, revolver, shotgun, rifle, machine gun, paint ball gun, disguised gun, dagger, dirk, razor, stiletto, switchblade knife, gravity knife, brass knuckles, sling shot, metal knuckle knife, box cutter, cane sword, electronic dart gun, Kung Fu star, electronic stun gun, pepper spray or other noxious spray, explosive or incendiary bomb, or look-alikes (i.e., fake items made to look like any of the aforementioned or other weapon), pocket-, pen-, or other knife, or other device, instrument, material, or substance ("other Item") that can cause physical injury or death when used, or when such other item is brandished as a weapon.

III. Student Rights and Responsibilities

Students' Rights

- 1. Students have the right to pursue an education in an atmosphere that is safe and conducive to learning and to achieve all that they are capable of achieving.
- 2. Students have the right to enroll in a particular course of study that best meets their needs.
- 3. Students have the right to be respected on the merits of their attributes as individuals.
- 4. Students have the right to procedural due process, guaranteed by the United States Constitution and New York State Education Law, prior to disciplinary action taken against them. Students have the right to freedom of speech and expression, which does not interfere with the educational process or infringe upon the rights of others.
- 5. Students have the right to be free from discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation on school property or school functions including but not limited to the educational program, activities, or admission policies of their school.

Students' Responsibilities

- 1. Students will conduct themselves with respect toward self, fellow students and teachers in accordance with the District Code of Conduct and the provisions of DASA. Students will conduct themselves in a manner that fosters an environment that is free from bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation. Students should also report and encourage others to report any incidents of bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination.
- 2. Students will maintain as high a scholastic average as possible.
- 3. Students will follow the directions of the faculty and administration at all times.
- 4. Students will fulfill all academic and behavioral classroom obligations to teachers.
- 5. Students will show respect for school property and for the property of others.
- 6. Students will demonstrate good sportsmanship at all times and in all school activities.
- 7. Students will dress in a clean, presentable manner, in accordance with guidelines specified by the administration in the Code of Conduct, regarding appropriate school dress.
- 8. Students will take an active part in student government by running for office or conscientiously voting for the best candidates and making his/her problems known to the representative.

IV. Essential Partners

The Naples Central School District believes that appropriate student behavior is a result of cooperative efforts among students, parents, staff members, the administration and the Board of Education. All essential partners will demonstrate respect for school and societal rules. The District therefore emphasizes the need for the entire school community to provide a meaningful educational experience to all District students.

A. Parents

All parents are expected to:

- Recognize that the education of their children is a joint responsibility of the parents and the school community.
- Send their children to school ready to participate and learn.
- Ensure their children attend school regularly and on time.
- Ensure absences are excused.
- Insist their children be dressed and groomed in a manner consistent with the student dress code.
- Help their children understand that in a democratic society appropriate rules are required to maintain a safe, orderly environment.
- Know school rules and help their children understand them.
- Convey to their children a supportive attitude toward education and the District.
- Build good relationships with teachers, other parents and their children's friends.
- Help their children deal effectively with peer pressure.
- Inform school officials of changes in the home situation that may affect student conduct or performance.
- Provide a place for study and ensure homework assignments are completed.
- Report incidents of bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation that are witnessed or otherwise brought to a parent's attention in a timely manner.

B. Teachers

All District teachers are expected to:

- Maintain a climate of mutual respect and dignity, regardless of actual or perceived race, color, weight, age, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sexual orientation, gender or sex, which will strengthen students' self-concept and promote confidence to learn.
- Demonstrate interest in teaching and concern for student achievement.
- Know school policies and rules, and enforce them in a fair and consistent manner.
- Communicate to students and parents:
 - Course objectives and requirements
 - Marking/grading procedures
 - Assignment deadlines
 - Expectations for students
 - Classroom discipline plan
- Communicate regularly with students, parents and other school district personnel.

- Confront issues of bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation or any situation that threatens the emotional or physical health or safety of any student, school employee or any person who is lawfully on school property or at a school function. Report all incidents in a timely manner.
- Address personal biases that may prevent equal treatment of all students in the school or classroom setting.

C. Administrators

All District administrators are expected to:

- Promote a safe, orderly and stimulating school environment, which supports active teaching and learning.
- Facilitate regular communication (including the redress of grievances) among staff, students, and parents.
- Evaluate on a regular basis all staff and instructional programs.
- Support the development of and student participation in appropriate extracurricular programs and assess and adjust as needed.
- Be responsible for enforcing the Code of Conduct and resolving all cases promptly and fairly.
- Maintain a climate of mutual respect and dignity, regardless of actual or perceived race, color, weight, age, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sexual orientation, gender or sex, which will strengthen students' self-concept and promote confidence to learn.
- Confront issues of bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation or any situation that threatens the emotional or physical health or safety of any student, school employee or any person who is lawfully on school property or at a school function. Report all incidents in a timely manner.
- Address personal biases that may prevent equal treatment of all students in the school or classroom setting.

D. Other School District Personnel

All other School District personnel are expected to:

- Maintain a climate of mutual respect and dignity, regardless of actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sexual orientation, gender or sex, which will strengthen students' self-concept and promote confidence to learn.
- Demonstrate interest, enthusiasm and concern for student health, safety, and achievement.
- Know District policies and enforce them in a fair and consistent manner.
- Confront issues of bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation or any situation that threatens the emotional or physical health or safety of any student, school employee or any person who is lawfully on school property or at a school function. Report all incidents in a timely manner.
- Address personal biases that may prevent equal treatment of all students in the school or classroom setting.
- Communicate regularly with students, parents and other school district personnel as appropriate.

E. Board of Education

All School Board members are expected to:

- Collaborate with student, teacher, administrator, and parent organizations, school safety personnel and other school personnel to develop a Code of Conduct that clearly defines expectations for the conduct of students, District personnel and parents/visitors on school property and at school functions.
- Adopt and review at least annually the District's Code of Conduct to evaluate the Code's effectiveness and the fairness and consistency of its implementation.
- Lead by example by conducting Board meetings in a professional, respectful, and courteous manner.
- Support the efforts of teachers, staff, and community to provide the highest quality education for students.
- Be student advocates and interact with parents; helping students achieve success by promoting a clear and open line of communication between parents and the Board of Education.
- Maintain a climate of mutual respect and dignity, regardless of actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sexual orientation, gender or sex, which will strengthen students' self-concept and promote confidence to learn.
- Report issues of bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation or any situation that threatens the emotional or physical health or safety of any student, school employee or any person who is lawfully on school property or at a school function.

V. Acceptable and Unacceptable Dress

- All students are expected to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to dress appropriately for school and school functions. School is a workplace and student attire should be appropriate for the workplace. Student attire should be a reflection of the atmosphere of mutual respect, as dress code expectations are intended to promote an emotionally safe environment for all.
- Students and their families have the primary responsibility for acceptable student dress and appearance. However, teacher and school district personnel should exemplify and reinforce acceptable student attire and help students develop an understanding of appropriate appearance in the school setting. The school administration will make the final decision regarding inappropriate student dress.
- A student's dress, grooming and appearance shall be safe, appropriate and not disrupt or interfere with the educational process.
- Clothing shall be of a respectable type and coverage. Recognize that extremely brief garments that reveal or expose private parts or midriff/mid-torso, or expose underwear are not appropriate. This guideline and reasonable judgement should be used.
- Shorts, skirts and dresses shall be of respectable type and length. Private parts and midriff must be covered. This guideline and reasonable judgement should be used.
- Pajamas, bedroom slippers, etc. may not be worn except for special occasions such as spirit week.
- Safety is a primary concern; clothing should be clean and proper footwear should be worn at all times. Students should comply with course requirements for proper footwear and clothing for PE, art class, science, technology, etc. Course syllabi should include any specific requirements. Footwear and clothing that is a safety hazard (i.e., spiked heels, cleats) will not be allowed.

• Discriminatory messages on clothing related to ethnicity, ethnic origin, religion, religious practices, weight, ancestry, national origin, gender (including gender identity and expression), sexual orientation or disability are not permitted. Clothing that shows written or printed matter that is profane, sexually suggestive, or advocates alcohol, tobacco or illegal drug use may not be worn. Also, students may not wear clothing that encourages illegal or violent activities. Clothing should not depict guns or other weapons.

VI. Acceptable and Unacceptable Student Conduct/Language

While on school property and at school functions, students should:

- Conduct themselves with respect toward self, fellow students and teachers. This includes conducting themselves in a manner that fosters an environment that is free from bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation as defined in this Code, and to report and encourage others to report any incidents of bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation.
- Maintain as high a scholastic average as possible.
- Follow the directions of school district personnel at all times.
- Fulfill all academic and behavioral obligations.
- Show respect for school property and for the property of others.
- Demonstrate good sportsmanship at all times and in all school activities.
- Dress in a clean, presentable manner, in accordance with guidelines specified by the administration in the Code of Conduct, regarding appropriate school dress.

While on school property and at school functions, students should **<u>not</u>**:

- Engage in conduct that is disorderly. Examples of disorderly conduct include but are not limited to:
 - Running in hallways.
 - Making unreasonable noise.
 - Using language or gestures that are profane, lewd, vulgar, slanderous or denigrate others on account of race, color, religion, religious practices, creed, national origin, ethnic origin, ethnic group, weight, age, disability, gender (including gender identity and expression), or sexual orientation.
 - Obstructing vehicular or pedestrian traffic.
 - Engaging in any willful act that disrupts the normal operation of the school community.
 - Trespassing. Students are not permitted in any school building, other than the one they regularly attend, without the permission from the administrator in charge of the building.
 - Computer/electronic/cell phone misuse, including but not limited to, any unauthorized use of computers, software, or internet/intranet account: accessing inappropriate websites: or any other violation of the District's Acceptable Use Policy.

- Engage in conduct that is insubordinate. Examples of insubordinate conduct include but are not limited to:
 - Failing to comply with the reasonable directions of teachers, school administrators or other school employees in charge of students or otherwise demonstrating disrespect.
 - o Lateness, missing or leaving school without permission.
 - Skipping detention.
- Engage in conduct that is disruptive. Examples of disruptive conduct include but are not limited to:
 - Failing to comply with the reasonable directions of teachers, school administrators or other school employees in charge of students.
- Engage in conduct that is violent. Examples of violent conduct include but are not limited to:
 - Committing an act of violence (such as hitting, kicking, punching and scratching) upon a teacher, administrator or other school employee or attempting to do so.
 - Committing an act of violence (such as hitting, kicking, punching and scratching) upon another student or any other person lawfully on school property or attempting to do so.
 - Possessing a weapon. Authorized law enforcement officials are the only persons permitted to have a weapon in their possession while on school property or at a school function.
- Engage in any conduct that endangers the safety, morals, health or welfare of others. Examples of such conduct include but are not limited to:
 - o Lying, deceiving or giving false information to school personnel.
 - Stealing District property or the property of other students, school personnel or any other person lawfully on school property or while attending a school function.
 - Defamation, which includes making false or unprivileged statements or representations about an individual or identifiable group of individuals that harm the reputation of the person or the identifiable group by defaming them. This can include posting or publishing video, audio recordings or pictures (written material, cell phones, Internet, YouTube, etc.)
 - Discrimination, as defined above, which includes the use of race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender (including <u>gender identity</u> is one's self-conception as being male or female, as distinguished from actual biological sex or sex assigned at birth and <u>gender expression</u> is the manner in which a person represents or expresses gender to others, often through behavior, clothing, hairstyles, activities, voice or mannerisms) or other status protected by local, state, or federal law as a basis for treating another in a negative manner.
 - Harassment, as defined above, which includes a communication (verbal, written, electronic or graphic) and/or physical conduct based on an individual's actual or perceived race, color, religion, national origin, political affiliation, sexual orientation, sex, weight, age, marital or veteran status, disability or any other status protected by local, state, or federal law.
 - Bullying, hazing and intimidation, as defined above, which includes engaging in actions or statements that put an individual in fear of bodily harm and/or emotional discomfort; for example, "play" fighting, extortion of money, overt teasing, etc.

- Cyber bullying, as defined above, including, but not limited to, the use of instant messaging, e-mail, Web sites, chat rooms, and text messaging, when such use interferes with the operation of the school; or infringes upon the general health, safety and welfare of students or employees.
- Sexual harassment, which includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, taking, sending or receiving sexually explicit videos, pictures or auditory recordings and other verbal or physical conduct (such as inappropriate touching) or communication of a sexual nature.
- Displaying signs of gang affiliation or engaging in gang-related behaviors that are observed to increase the level of conflict or violent behavior.
- Hazing, as defined above, which includes any intentional or reckless act directed against another for the purpose of initiation into, affiliating with or maintaining membership in any District or school sponsored activity, organization, club or team.
- o Selling, using, possessing or distributing obscene material.
- Possessing, consuming, selling, attempting to sell, distributing or exchanging alcoholic beverages, tobacco, tobacco products (including look-a-like tobacco products such as smokeless or "vapor" cigarettes) or illegal substances, or being under the influence of any of these. "Illegal substances" include, but are not limited to, inhalants, marijuana, cocaine, LSD, PCP, amphetamines, heroin, steroids, look-alike drugs, herbal/chemical products designed to mimic the effects of marijuana (also known as synthetic cannabinoids, including but not limited to such brand names as "K2", "Spice", etc.), drug paraphernalia and any substances commonly referred to as "designer drugs."
- Inappropriately using, sharing, selling, attempting to sell, distributing or exchanging prescription and over-the-counter drugs.
- Possessing, consuming, selling, attempting to sell, distributing, or exchanging "look-alike drugs"; or, possessing or consuming (without authorization), selling, attempting to sell, distributing or exchanging other substances such as dietary supplements, weight loss pills, etc.
- o Gambling and gaming.
- Initiating or reporting warning of fire, bomb threat, or other catastrophe without valid cause, misusing 911, or inappropriately discharging a fire extinguisher.
- o Violating gender privacy when using school restroom facilities.
- Indecent exposure, that is, exposure to sight of the private parts of the body or other lewd or indecent behavior.
- Failure to report, when you have knowledge of, an intended false bomb threat.
- Retaliation, as defined above.
- Engage in misconduct while on a school bus, school operated vehicle or private vehicle being utilized for the transport of students. It is crucial for students to behave appropriately while riding on District buses to ensure their safety and that of other passengers and to avoid distracting the bus driver. Students are required to conduct themselves on the bus in a manner consistent with established standards for classroom behavior. This includes but is not limited to excessive noise, pushing, shoving, fighting, bullying, cyber bullying, harassment, discrimination and/or retaliation as defined in this Code.

- Engage in any form of academic misconduct. Examples of academic misconduct include but are not limited to:
 - o Plagiarism
 - o Cheating
 - o Copying or otherwise transmitting answers to or for other students.
 - Altering records.
 - Assisting another student in any of the above actions.

VII. Reporting Violations

A. General Reporting Expectations

All students are expected to promptly report violations of this Code, and to immediately report any individual possessing a weapon, alcohol or illegal substance on school property or at a school function, to a teacher, school counselor, the building principal or other District staff. To the extent possible, the reporting student's identity will be kept confidential.

All District staff members who are authorized to impose disciplinary sanctions are expected to do so in a prompt, fair and lawful manner. District staff members that are not authorized to impose disciplinary sanctions are expected to promptly report violations of this Code to their supervisor, who will, in turn, either impose an appropriate disciplinary sanction (if warranted) or refer the matter to a staff member who is authorized to impose an appropriate sanction.

Any weapon, alcohol or illegal substance found shall be confiscated immediately, if it is possible to do so in a safe manner, followed by notification to the parent of the student involved and the appropriate disciplinary sanction if warranted. Notification of law enforcement officials is also a probable consequence.

The building principal or his or her designee may notify the appropriate local law enforcement agency of those Code violations that constitute a crime and substantially affect the order or security of a school as soon as practical. The notification may be made by telephone, followed by a letter. This notification must identify the student and explain the conduct that violated the code of conduct and constituted a crime.

B. Reporting Discrimination, Harassment and Retaliation (including Bullying, Cyber-bullying, Hazing, Intimidation, etc.)

The District will act to promptly investigate all complaints, verbal or written, formal or informal, of allegations of discrimination, harassment and retaliation; and will promptly take appropriate action to protect individuals from such further conduct. All sexual harassment and gender discrimination complaints will be forwarded to one of the District's Dignity Act Coordinators, who will carry out the investigation and coordinate compliance with DASA regulations as applicable to the complaint.

It is essential that any student who believes he/she has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, or retaliatory behavior, as well as any individual who is aware of and/or who has knowledge of, or witnesses any possible occurrence, immediately report same to any staff member or administrator. To effectively enforce this policy and to take prompt corrective measures, it is essential that all persons with knowledge of harassment/bullying report such behavior to an administrator including but not limited to a principal, superintendent, or the Dignity Act Coordinator (as defined below) within one school day after the incident is reported or witnessed so that it may be effectively investigated and resolved. A written report of the incident by the school employee reporting same has to be completed within two school days. All complaints and written reports of alleged harassing, bullying and/or retaliatory conduct shall be forwarded to the school building's Dignity Act Coordinator for monitoring.

All complaints of alleged discriminating, harassing, and/or retaliatory conduct shall be:

- i. promptly investigated in accordance with the terms of District policy;
- ii. forwarded to the school building's Dignity Act Coordinator for monitoring; and
- iii. treated as confidential and private to the extent possible within legal constraints.

The District's designated Dignity Act Coordinators are:

Name	School Building	Contact Information
Elizabeth Ashton	Jr./Sr. High	eashton@naplescsd.org 585-374-7927
Kristina Saucke	Elementary	ksaucke@naplescsd.org 585-374-7951

VIII. Disciplinary Interventions or Consequences, Procedures and Referrals

Discipline is most effective when it deals directly with the problem at the time and place it occurs, and in a way that students view as fair and impartial. School personnel who interact with students are expected to use disciplinary action only when necessary and to place emphasis on the students' ability to grow in self-discipline.

Disciplinary action, when necessary, will be firm, fair, and consistent so as to be the most effective in changing student behavior. In determining the appropriate disciplinary action, school personnel authorized to impose disciplinary penalties may consider the following:

- 1. The student's age.
- 2. The nature of the offense and the circumstances, which led to the offense.
- 3. The student's prior disciplinary record.
- 4. The effectiveness of other forms of discipline.
- 5. Information from parents, teachers and/or others, as appropriate.
- 6. Other extenuating circumstances.

As a general rule, discipline will be progressive. This means that a student's first violation will usually merit a lighter penalty than subsequent violations.

If the conduct of a student is related to a disability or suspected disability, the student shall be referred to the Committee on Special Education and discipline, if warranted, shall be administered consistent with the separate requirements of this code of conduct for disciplining students with a disability or presumed to have a disability. A student identified as having a disability shall not be disciplined for behavior related to his/her disability.

All school rules and disciplinary procedures are applicable to misconduct on school property, at school functions and outside of the school setting if the misconduct adversely affects the educative process and/or endangers the health, safety or morals of students.

This Code is instituted to address major areas of student conduct and is not intended to address all possible variations and degrees of behavior problems. Disciplinary infractions are categorized into three broad categories. Within each category, a sample group of infractions is listed. Any behavior, which is illegal, or otherwise damaging to the educational environment is prohibited, even though it may not be specifically mentioned. In such situations, the rights of the student, the school and the community will be considered prior to any disciplinary action.

Level J - A student misbehavior (of a more minor nature) that detracts from the teaching and learning process or the orderly operation of the school.

Unacceptable Behavior:

- Classroom disruption
- School/class tardiness
- Lack of materials/preparation
- Rude/discourteous behavior/acts
- Bus disturbance
- Cafeteria disruption
- Horseplay
- Inappropriate attire
- Loitering
- Parking violation
- Public displays of affection
- Refusing a supervisor's reasonable directive
- Unacceptable language

Level II - These behaviors are of a more serious nature and/or repeated Level I misconduct:

Unacceptable Behavior:

- Abusive language
- Cheating
- School/class truancy
- Dangerous conduct
- Detention truancy
- Disruptive/uncooperative classroom behavior
- Harassment/retaliation/bullying/cyber bullying
- Insubordination
- Invalid note/authorization

- Leaving school grounds
- Inappropriate language
- Theft
- Trespassing
- Unsafe driving
- Use of prohibited articles
- Vandalism
- Acceptable Use Policy Violations

Level III - These behaviors are considered to be the most serious of school-related misconduct. Not only do these actions detract from the teaching and learning process, but seriously endanger the health, safety and welfare of others. Outright repeated insubordination will also be placed in this category and/or continuation of Level I or Level II misconduct.

Unacceptable Behavior:

- Assault of student/staff
- Obscene language or gesture directed at a staff member
- Possession of weapon
- Stealing
- Threats/menacing
- Vandalism
- Other violations of law
- Harassment/retaliation/bullying/cyber bullying
- Violent Behavior

Students who are found to have violated the District's Code may be subject to the following consequences either alone or in combination. The school personnel identified after each consequence are authorized to impose that consequence, consistent with District policy and the law. The listed sanctions are advisory and, as a general rule, discipline will be progressive. However, District personnel may impose any level of discipline, even for the first violation, that is proportionate to the misconduct at issue. Administration may adjust the consequence based on the infraction and or frequency.

- 1. Oral warning any employee of the District staff
- 2. Written warning any employee of the District staff
- 3. Written notification to parent –athletic director, coaches, School counselors, teachers, teacher assistants, principal, superintendent
- 4. Detention (During School Generally less than 45 minutes) Building or District Administrator or Designee
- 5. Detention (Afterschool) teachers, teacher assistants, building principal, or Designee
- 6. Suspension from transportation Building or District Administrator
- 7. Removal from classroom Teacher
- 8. Suspension from athletic participation coaches, athletic director, principal, superintendent
- 9. Suspension from social or extracurricular activities athletic director, principal, superintendent
- 10. Suspension of other privileges principal, superintendent
- 11. In-school suspension principal or superintendent

- 12. Temporary removal from classroom by teacher, principal, or principal's designee.
- 13. Short-term (five days or less) suspension from school principal, superintendent, Board of Education.
- 14. Long-term (more than five days) suspension from school superintendent, Board of Education
- 15. Permanent suspension from school superintendent, Board of Education.

In all cases, regardless of the consequence imposed, the school personnel authorized to impose the consequence must inform the student of the alleged misconduct and must investigate, to the extent necessary, the facts surrounding the alleged misconduct. All students will have an opportunity to present their version of the facts to the school personnel imposing the disciplinary penalty in connection with the imposition of the consequence.

Students who are to be given consequences other than an oral warning, written warning or written notification to their parents may be entitled to additional rights before the consequence is imposed. When any suspensions occur and the school is closed on the suspension dates, then the suspension(s) will carry over to the next attendance day. These additional rights are explained below.

1. Detention During Ninth Period

Teachers, principals, and the superintendent may use school detention as a consequence for student misconduct in situations where removal from the classroom or suspension would be inappropriate. After-school Detention will be imposed as a consequence only after the student's parent has been notified to confirm that the student has appropriate transportation home following detention.

2. Suspension from Transportation

If a student does not conduct himself/herself properly on a bus, the bus driver is expected to bring such misconduct to the principal's attention. Students who become a serious disciplinary problem may have their riding privileges suspended by the building principal or the Superintendent. In such cases, the student's parent will become responsible for seeing that his or her child gets to and from school safely. Should the suspension from transportation amount to a suspension from attendance; the District will make appropriate alternative arrangements to provide for the student's education.

A student subjected to a suspension from transportation is not entitled to a full hearing before the Superintendent (pursuant to Education Law §3214). However, the student and the student's parent will be provided with a reasonable opportunity for an informal conference with the District official imposing the discipline to discuss the conduct and the consequence involved.

3. Suspension from Athletic Participation, Extracurricular Activities/Other Privileges

A student subjected to a suspension from athletic participation, extra-curricular activities or other privileges is not entitled to a full hearing before the Superintendent (pursuant to Education Law §3214). However, the student and the student's parent will be provided with a reasonable opportunity for an informal conference as outlined in the Extracurricular and Athletic Code of Conduct.

4. In-school Suspension

The Board recognizes that school must balance the need of students to attend school and the need for order in the classroom to establish an environment conducive to learning. As such, the Board authorizes building principals and the Superintendent to place students who would otherwise be suspended from school as the result of a Code of Conduct violation in "in-school suspension."

A student subjected to an in-school suspension is not entitled to a full hearing before the Superintendent (pursuant to Education Law §3214). However, the student and the student's parent will be provided with a reasonable opportunity for an informal conference with the District official imposing the in-school suspension to discuss the conduct and the penalty involved.

5. Teacher Disciplinary Removal of Disruptive Students

A student's behavior can affect a teacher's ability to teach and can interfere with the rights of other students in the classroom to learn. In most instances the classroom teacher can control a student's behavior and maintain or restore control over the classroom by using good classroom management techniques. These techniques may include practices that involve the teacher directing a student to briefly leave the classroom to give the student an opportunity to regain his or her composure and self-control in an alternative setting. Such practices may include, but are not limited to: (1) short-term "cooling off period" in an elementary classroom or in an administrator's office; (2) sending a student to the principal's office for the remainder of the class time only; or (3) sending a student to a school counselor or other District staff member for counseling. Time-honored classroom management techniques such as these do not constitute disciplinary removals for purposes of this Code.

On occasion, a student's behavior may become disruptive. For purposes of this Code, a disruptive student is a student who is substantially disruptive of the educational process or substantially interferes with the teacher's authority over the classroom. A substantial disruption of the educational process or substantial interference with a teacher's authority occurs when a student is grossly insubordinate or disrespectful, demonstrates a persistent unwillingness to comply with the teacher's instructions or repeatedly violates the teacher's classroom behavior rules.

A classroom teacher may remove a disruptive student from class for up to two days. The removal from class applies to the class of the removing teacher only.

If the disruptive student does not pose a danger or ongoing threat of disruption to the academic process, the teacher must provide the student with an explanation for why he or she is being removed and an opportunity to explain his or her version of the relevant events before the student is removed. Only after the informal discussion may a teacher remove a student from class.

If the student poses a danger or ongoing threat of disruption, the teacher may order the student to be removed immediately. The teacher must, however, explain to the student why he or she was removed from the classroom and give the student a chance to present his or her version of the relevant events within 24-hours.

The teacher must document the removal and meet with the principal as soon as possible, but no later than the end of the school day, to explain the circumstances of the removal and to present the documentation. If the principal is not available by the end of the same school day, the teacher must leave the documentation with the secretary and meet with the principal prior to the beginning of classes on the next school day.

By the end of the day of the student's removal, the teacher and the principal must notify the student's parents, via telephone or email, that the student has been removed from class and why. The principal will verify the teacher notification by calling the parent and reminding them of the opportunity for an informal hearing at school with all parties involved. This will be followed by a written notice, sent within 24 hours, to inform parents of their right, upon request, to meet informally with the principal to discuss the reasons for the removal. The principal may require the teacher who ordered the removal to attend the informal conference.

If at the informal meeting the student denies the charges, the principal must explain why the student was removed and give the student and the student's parents a chance to present the student's version of the relevant events. The informal meeting must be held within 48 hours of the student's removal. The timing of the informal meeting may be extended by mutual agreement of the parent and principal.

The principal or the acting principal may overturn the removal of the student from class if the principal finds any one of the following:

- 1. The charges against the student are not supported by substantial evidence.
- 2. The student's removal is otherwise in violation of law.
- 3. The conduct warrants suspension from school pursuant to Education Law §3214 and a suspension will be imposed.

The principal may overturn a removal at any point between receiving the referral form issued by the teacher and the close of business on the day following the 48-hour period for the informal conference, if a conference is requested. No student removed from the classroom by the classroom teacher will be permitted to return to the classroom until the principal makes a final determination, or the period of removal expires, whichever is less.

Any disruptive student removed from the classroom by the classroom teacher shall be provided continued educational programming and activities until he or she is permitted to return to the classroom.

Each teacher must keep a file of all disciplinary forms filed for all cases of removal of students from his or her class. The principal must also keep a file of all removals of students from class.

Removal of a student with a disability, under certain circumstances, may constitute a change in the student's placement. Accordingly, no teacher may remove a student with a disability from his or her class until he or she has verified with the principal or the chairperson of the Committee on Special Education that the removal will not violate the student's rights under state or federal law or regulation.

The principal may, in his/her discretion, designate a School District administrator to carry out his/her functions for student removal.

6. Out-of-School Suspension

Suspension from school is a penalty which may be imposed upon students who are insubordinate, disorderly, violent or disruptive, or whose conduct otherwise endangers the safety, morals, health or welfare of others. Students suspended from school are prohibited from being on School District property and from attending or participating in any school function on or off School District property. The consequence in terms of suspension is subject to the Superintendent's review for extenuating circumstances. The Board retains its authority to suspend students, but places primary responsibility for the suspension of students with the Superintendent and the principals.

All staff members must immediately report and refer a violent student to the principal or the Superintendent for a violation of the Code of Conduct. All recommendations and referrals shall be made in writing unless the conditions underlying the recommendation or referral warrant immediate attention. In such cases a written report is to be prepared as soon as possible by the staff member recommending the suspension.

The Superintendent or principal, upon receiving a recommendation or referral for suspension or when processing a case for suspension, shall gather the facts relevant to the matter and record them for subsequent presentation, if necessary.

a. Short-term (5 days or less) Suspension from School

When the Superintendent or principal (referred to as the "suspending authority") proposes to suspend a student charged with misconduct for five days or less pursuant to Education Law §3214(3), the suspending authority must immediately notify the student orally. If the student denies the misconduct, the suspending authority must provide an explanation of the basis for the proposed suspension. The suspending authority must also notify the student's parents in writing, that the student may be suspended from school; the written notice shall be delivered in a manner reasonably calculated to assure receipt within 24 hours of the decision to propose suspension. Notice should also be provided by telephone if the school has been provided with a telephone number(s) for the purpose of contacting the parents.

The notice shall provide a description of the charges against the student and the incident for which suspension is proposed and shall inform the parents of the right to request an immediate informal conference with the suspending authority, where the parents, upon request, shall be permitted to ask questions of complaining witnesses under such procedures as the suspending authority may establish. The notice and opportunity for informal conference shall be provided prior to the suspension unless the student's continuing presence in the school poses a continuing danger to persons or property, or an ongoing threat of disruption. Where the student's continuing presence in the school poses a continuing danger to disruption, the student may be immediately suspended and the notice and informal conference shall be afforded as soon as reasonably practicable. Both the notice and informal conference shall be in the dominant language or mode of communication used by the parents.

If the informal conference is requested, it will be scheduled at the earliest convenience of the school official.

After the conference, the suspending authority shall promptly advise the parents in writing of his or her decision. The suspending authority shall advise the parents that if they are not satisfied with the decision and wish to pursue the matter, they must file a written appeal to the Superintendent within five business days, unless they can show extraordinary circumstances precluding them from doing so. The Superintendent shall issue a written decision regarding the appeal within 10 business days of receiving the appeal. If the parents are not satisfied with the District Clerk within 10 business days of the date of the Superintendents' decision, unless they can show extraordinary circumstances precluding them from doing so. Final decisions of the Board may be appealed to the Commissioner within 30 days of the decision.

b. Long-term (more than 5 days) Suspension from School

When the Superintendent, or his/her designee, determines that a suspension for more than five days may be warranted, he or she shall give reasonable notice to the student and the student's parents of their right to a fair hearing. At the hearing the student shall have the right to be represented by counsel, the right to question witnesses against him or her and the right to present witnesses and other evidence on his or her behalf. When the Board of Education determines to conduct the fair hearing itself, it must provide the required notice of hearing.

The Superintendent shall personally hear and determine the proceeding or may, in his or her discretion, designate a hearing officer to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer shall be authorized to administer oaths and to issue subpoenas in conjunction with the proceeding before him or her. A record of the hearing shall be maintained, but no stenographic transcript shall be required. A tape recording shall be deemed a satisfactory record. The hearing officer shall make findings of fact and recommendations as to the appropriate measure of discipline to the Superintendent. The report of the hearing officer shall be advisory only, and the Superintendent may accept all or any part thereof.

An appeal of the decision of the Superintendent may be made to the Board that will make its decision based solely upon the record before it. All appeals to the Board must be in writing and submitted to the District Clerk within 30 calendar days of the date of the Superintendent's decision, unless the parents can show that extraordinary circumstances precluded them from doing so. The Board may adopt in whole or in part the decision of the Superintendent. Final decisions of the Board may be appealed to the Commissioner within 30 days of the decision.

c. Permanent Suspension

Permanent suspension is reserved for extraordinary circumstances including, but not limited to, where a student's conduct demonstrates a reckless disregard for the health, safety and welfare of others and/or poses a life-threatening danger to the safety and well-being of other students, school personnel or any other person lawfully on school property or attending a school function.

7. Minimum Periods of Suspension

a. Students who bring a weapon to school (Gun Free School Act of 1994)

Any student, other than a student with a disability, found guilty of bringing a weapon onto school property will be subject to suspension from school for at least one calendar year. Before being suspended, the student will have an opportunity for a hearing pursuant to New York Education Law section 3214. The Superintendent has the authority to modify the suspension on a case-by-case basis. In deciding whether to modify the penalty, the Superintendent may consider the following:

- 1. The student's age
- 2. The student's grade in school
- 3. The student's prior disciplinary record
- 4. The Superintendent's belief that other forms of discipline may be more effective
- 5. Input from parents, teachers and/or others
- 6. Other extenuating circumstances

The Superintendent is required to refer students over the age of sixteen or any student fourteen or fifteen years old who qualifies for juvenile offender status to the appropriate law enforcement authorities. A student fourteen or fifteen years old who possesses a firearm, machine gun, or loaded firearm (as identified under the New York State Penal Law section 220.14 (14)) qualifies for juvenile offender status under the New York State Criminal Procedure Law.

A student with a disability may be suspended only in accordance with the requirements of state and federal law.

b. Students Who Commit Violent Acts other than Bringing a Weapon to School

Any student, other than a student with a disability, who is found to have committed a violent act other than bringing a weapon onto school property, shall be subject to suspension from school for at least five days. If the proposed penalty is the minimum five-day suspension, the student and the student's parent will be given the same notice and opportunity for a hearing given to all students subject to a long-term suspension. The Superintendent has the authority to modify the minimum five-day suspension on a case-by-case basis. In deciding whether to modify the penalty, the Superintendent may consider the same factors considered in modifying a one-year suspension for possessing a weapon.

c. Students Who are Repeatedly Substantially Disruptive of the Educational Process or Who Repeatedly Substantially Interfere with Teacher Authority over Classroom

Any student, other than a student with a disability, who engages in conduct that results in the student being removed from the classroom by teacher (s) on four or more occasions during a semester, will be suspended from school for at least five days. If the proposed penalty is the minimum five-day suspension, the student and the student's parent will be given the same notice and opportunity for a hearing given to all students subject to a short-term suspension. If the proposed penalty exceeds the five-day suspension, the student and the student and the student's parent will be given the same notice and opportunity for a hearing given to all students subject to a long-term suspension. The Superintendent has the authority to modify the minimum five-day suspension on a case-by-case basis. In deciding whether to modify the penalty, the Superintendent may consider the same factors considered in modifying a one-year suspension for possessing a weapon.

8. Referrals

1. Counseling

The Guidance Office shall handle all referrals of students to counseling.

2. PINS Petitions

The district may file a PINS (person in need of supervision) petition in Family Court on any student under the age of 18 who demonstrates that he or she requires supervision and treatment by:

- a. Being habitually truant and not attending school as required by part one of Article 65 of the Education Law.
- b. Engaging in an ongoing or continual course of conduct, which makes the student ungovernable or habitually disobedient, and beyond the lawful control of the school.
- c. Knowingly and unlawfully possesses marijuana or other illegal drugs in violation of Penal Law §221.05. A single violation of §221.05 will be a sufficient basis for filing a PINS petition.
- 3. Juvenile Delinquents and Juvenile Offenders

The superintendent is required to refer the following students to the County Attorney for a juvenile delinquency proceeding before the Family Court:

- a. Any student under the age of 16 who is found to have brought a weapon to school, or
- b. Any student 14 or 15 years old who qualifies for juvenile offender status under the Criminal Procedure Law §1.20 (42).

The Superintendent is required to refer students age 16 and older or any student 14 or 15 years old who qualifies for juvenile offender status to the appropriate law enforcement authorities.

IX. Remedial Responses to Violations of Code of Conduct

Students who violate this Code may also be subject to remedial action as the facts may warrant, including but not limited to any of the measures listed below:

- a. corrective instruction or other relevant learning or service experience;
- b. supportive intervention;
- c. behavioral assessment or evaluation;
- d. behavioral management plans, with benchmarks that are closely monitored; and/or
- e. student counseling and parent conferences.

Beyond these individual-focused remedial responses, school-wide or environmental remediation may also be utilized. These strategies may include:

- a. adoption of research-based prevention programs;
- b. modification of schedules;
- c. adjustment in hallway traffic and other student routes of travel;
- d. targeted use of monitors;
- e. staff professional development;
- f. parent conferences;
- g. involvement of parent-teacher organizations

X. Alternative Instruction

When a student of any age is removed from class by a teacher or a student of compulsory attendance age is suspended from school pursuant to Education Law §3214, the District will take immediate steps to provide alternative means of instruction for the student.

XI. Discipline of Students with Disabilities

The Board recognizes that it may be necessary to suspend, remove or otherwise discipline students with disabilities to address disruptive or problem behavior. The Board also recognizes that students with disabilities receive certain procedural protections whenever school authorities intend to impose discipline upon them. The Board is committed to ensuring that the procedures followed for suspending, removing or otherwise disciplining students with disabilities are consistent with the procedural safeguards required by applicable laws and regulations.

This Code of Conduct affords students with disabilities subject to disciplinary action no greater or lesser rights than those expressly afforded by applicable federal and state law and regulations.

A. Authorized Suspensions or Removals of Students with Disabilities

1. For purposes of this section of the Code of Conduct, the following definitions apply.

A "suspension" means a suspension pursuant to Education Law § 3214.
A "**removal**" means a removal for disciplinary reasons from the student's current educational placement other than a suspension and change in placement to an interim alternative educational setting (IAES).

An "IAES" means a temporary educational placement for a period of up to 45 days, other than the student's current placement at the time the behavior precipitating the IAES placement occurred, that enables the student to continue to progress in the general curriculum, although in another setting, to continue to receive those services and modifications, including those described on the student's current individualized education program (IEP), that will enable the student to meet the goals set out in such IEP, and include services and modifications to address the behavior which precipitated the IAES placement that are designed to prevent the behavior from recurring.

- 2. School personnel may order the suspension or removal of a student with a disability from his or her current educational placement as follows:
 - a. The Board, the District (BOCES) Superintendent of schools, Superintendent or a building principal may order the placement of a student with a disability into an IAES, another setting or suspension for a period not to exceed five consecutive school days and not to exceed the amount of time a non-disabled student would be subject to suspension for the same behavior.
 - b. The Superintendent may order the placement of a student with a disability into an IAES, another setting or suspension for up to 10 consecutive school days, inclusive of any period in which the student has been suspended or removed under subparagraph (a) above for the same behavior, if the Superintendent determines that the student has engaged in behavior that warrants a suspension and the suspension or removal does not exceed the amount of time non-disabled students would be subject to suspension for the same behavior.
 - c. The Superintendent may order additional suspensions of not more than 10 consecutive school days in the same school year for separate incidents of misconduct, as long as those removals do not constitute a change of placement.
 - d. The Superintendent may order the placement of a student with a disability in an IAES to be determined by the committee on special education (CSE), for the same amount of time that a student without a disability would be subject to discipline, but not more than 45 days, if (i) the student carries or possesses a weapon to or at school, school premises or a school function; (ii) the student knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance while at school, on school premises or at a school function; or (iii) the student has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school premises, or at a school function.
 - 1) "Weapon" means the same as "dangerous weapon" under 18 U.S.C. § 930(g)(w) which includes "a weapon, device, instrument, material or substance, animate or inanimate, that is used for, or is readily capable of causing death or serious bodily injury, except...[for] a pocket knife with a blade of less than 2 1/2 inches in length."
 - 2) "Controlled substance" means a drug or other substance identified in certain provisions of the federal Controlled Substances Act specified in both federal and state law and regulations applicable to this policy.

- 3) **"Illegal drugs"** means a controlled substance except for those legally possessed or used under the supervision of a licensed health-care professional or that is legally possessed or used under any other authority under the Controlled Substances Act or any other federal law.
- 4) **"Serious bodily injury"** means bodily injury which involves a substantial risk of death, extreme physical pain, protracted and obvious disfigurement or protracted loss or impairment of the function of a bodily member, organ or mental faculty.
- 5) Subject to specified conditions required by both federal and state law and regulations, an impartial hearing officer may order the placement of a student with a disability in an IAES setting for up to 45 days at a time, if the hearing officer determines that the school district has demonstrated by substantial evidence that maintaining the student in his or her current educational placement is substantially likely to result in injury to the student or others.

B. Change of Placement Rule

- 1. A disciplinary change in placement means a suspension or removal from a student's current educational placement that is either:
 - a. for more than 10 consecutive school days; or
 - b. for a period of 10 consecutive school days or less if the student is subjected to a series of suspensions or removals that constitute a pattern because they cumulate to more than 10 school days in a school year and because of such factors as the length of each suspension or removal, the total amount of time the student is removed and the proximity of the suspensions or removals to one another.
- 2. School personnel may not suspend or remove a student with disabilities if imposition of the suspension or removal would result in a disciplinary change in placement based on a pattern of suspension or removal.

However, the District may impose a suspension or removal, which would otherwise result in a disciplinary change in placement, if the CSE has determined that the behavior was not a manifestation of the student's disability, or the student is placed in an IAES for behavior involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances, or serious bodily injury.

C. Special Rules Regarding the Suspension or Removal of Students with Disabilities

- 1. The District's Committee on Special Education shall:
 - a. Conduct functional behavioral assessments to determine why a student engages in a particular behavior, and develop or review behavioral intervention plans whenever the District is first suspending or removing a student with a disability for more than 10 school days in a school year or imposing a suspension or removal that constitutes a disciplinary change in placement, including a change in placement to an IAES for misconduct involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances.

If subsequently, a student with a disability who has a behavioral intervention plan and who has been suspended or removed from his or her current educational placement for more than 10 school days in a school year is subjected to a suspension or removal that does not constitute a disciplinary change in placement, the members of the CSE shall review the behavioral intervention plan and its implementation to determine if modifications are necessary.

If one or more members of the CSE believe that modifications are needed, the School District shall convene a meeting of the CSE to modify such plan and its implementation, to the extent the committee determines necessary.

- b. Conduct a manifestation determination review of the relationship between the student's disability and the behavior subject to disciplinary action within 10 school days of the date a decision is made to place a student in an IAES either for misconduct involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances or because maintaining the student in his current educational setting poses a risk of harm to the student or others; or a decision is made to impose a suspension that constitutes a disciplinary change in placement.
- 2. The parents of a student who is facing disciplinary action, but who has not been determined to be eligible for services under IDEA and Article 89 at the time of misconduct, shall have the right to invoke applicable procedural safeguards set forth in federal and state law and regulations if, in accordance with federal and state statutory and regulatory criteria, the School District is deemed to have had knowledge that their child was a student with a disability before the behavior precipitating disciplinary action occurred. If the District is deemed to have had such knowledge, the student will be considered a student presumed to have a disability for discipline purposes.
 - a. The Superintendent, building principal or other school official imposing a suspension or removal shall be responsible for determining whether the student is a student presumed to have a disability.
 - b. A student will not be considered a student presumed to have a disability for discipline purposes if, upon receipt of information supporting a claim that the District had knowledge the student was a student with a disability, the District either:
 - 1) conducted an individual evaluation and determined that the student is not a student with a disability, or
 - 2) the parent of the student has refused services; or
 - 3) the parent of the student has not allowed an evaluation of the student pursuant to Section 200.4 of the Commissioner's Regulations.

If there is no basis for knowledge that the student is a student with a disability prior to taking disciplinary measures against the student, the student may be subjected to the same disciplinary measures as any other non-disabled student who engaged in comparable behaviors.

However, if a request for an individual evaluation is made while such non-disabled student is subjected to a disciplinary removal, an expedited evaluation shall be conducted and completed in the manner prescribed by applicable federal and state law and regulations. Until the expedited evaluation is completed, the non-disabled student who is not a student presumed to have a disability for discipline purposes shall remain in the educational placement determined by the District, which can include suspension.

- 3. The District shall provide parents with notice of disciplinary removal no later than the date on which a decision is made to change the placement of a student with a disability to an IAES for either misconduct involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances or because maintaining the student in his/her current educational setting poses a risk of harm to the student or others; or a decision is made to impose a suspension or removal that constitutes a disciplinary change in placement. The procedural safeguards notice prescribed by the Commissioner shall accompany the notice of disciplinary removal.
- 4. The parents of a student with disabilities subject to a suspension of five consecutive school days or less shall be provided with the same opportunity for an informal conference available to parents of non-disabled students under the Education Law.
- 5. Superintendent hearings on disciplinary charges against students with disabilities subject to a suspension of more than five school days shall be bifurcated into a guilt phase and a penalty phase in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Commissioner's regulations incorporated into this Code.
- 6. The removal of a student with disabilities other than a suspension or placement in an IAES shall be conducted in accordance with the due process procedures applicable to such removals of non-disabled students, except that school personnel may not impose such removal for more than 10 total days or for a period that would result in a disciplinary change in placement, unless the CSE has determined that the behavior is not a manifestation of the student's disability.
- 7. During any period of suspension or removal, including placement in an IAES, students with disabilities shall be provided services as required by the Commissioner's regulations incorporated into this code.

D. Expedited Due Process Hearings

- 1. An expedited due process hearing shall be conducted in the manner specified by the Commissioner's regulations incorporated into this Code, if:
 - a. The District requests such a hearing to obtain an order of an impartial hearing officer placing a student with a disability in an IAES where school personnel maintain that it is dangerous for the student to be in his or her current educational placement, or during the pendency of due process hearings where school personnel maintain that it is dangerous for the student to be in his or her current educational placement during such proceedings.
 - b. The parent requests such a hearing from a determination that the student's behavior was not a manifestation of the student's disability, or relating to any decision regarding placement, including but not limited to any decision to place the student in an IAES.

- c. During the pendency of an expedited due process hearing or appeal regarding the placement of a student in an IAES for behavior involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances, or on grounds of dangerousness, or regarding a determination that the behavior is not a manifestation of the student's disability for a student who has been placed in an IAES, the student shall remain in the IAES pending the decision of the impartial hearing officer or until expiration of the IAES placement, whichever occurs first, unless the parents and the district agree otherwise.
- d. If school personnel propose to change the student's placement after expiration of an IAES placement, during the pendency of any proceeding to challenge the proposed change in placement, the student shall remain in the placement prior to removal to the IAES, except where the student is again placed in an IAES.
- 2. An expedited due process hearing shall be completed within 15 business days of receipt of the request for a hearing. Although the impartial hearing officer may grant specific extensions of such time period, he or she must mail a written decision to the District and the parents within five business days after the last hearing date, and in no event later than 45 calendar days after receipt of the request for a hearing, without exceptions or extensions.

E. Referral to law enforcement and judicial authorities

In accordance with the provisions of IDEA and its implementing regulations:

- 1. The District may report a crime committed by a child with a disability to appropriate authorities, and such action will not constitute a change of the student's placement.
- 2. The Superintendent shall provide copies of the special education and disciplinary records of a student with disabilities for consideration to the appropriate authorities to whom a crime is reported, to the extent consistent with the Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act.

XII. Standards and Procedures to Assure Security and Safety of Students and School Personnel

The Board of Education has adopted District-wide and building-level school safety plans designed to assure security and safety of students and school personnel. These plans include:

- Policies and procedures for the safe evacuation of students, teachers, other school personnel, and visitors to the school in the event of a serious violent incident or other emergency that may occur before, during, or after school hours, which shall include evacuation routes and shelter sites and procedures for addressing medical needs, transportation, and emergency notification to persons in parental relation to a student;
- Designation of an emergency District Safety Team, Jr./Sr. High School Safety Team, and Elementary Safety Team.
- Procedures for assuring that crisis response fire and law enforcement officials have access to floor plans, blueprint, schematics, or other maps of the school interior, school grounds, and road maps of the immediate surrounding area;
- Establishment of internal and external communication systems in emergencies;

- Definition of the chain of command in a manner consistent with national interagency incident management system (NIMS) /incident command system (ICS);
- Coordination of the school safety plan with the state-wide plan for disaster mental health services to assure that the school has access to federal, state, and local mental health resources in the event of a violent incident;
- Procedures for annual review and the conduct of drills and other exercises to test components of the emergency response plan, including the use of tabletop exercises, in coordination with local and county emergency responders and preparedness of officials; and,
- Policies and procedures for securing and restricting access to the crime scene in order to preserve evidence in cases of violent crimes on school property.

XIII. Acceptable and Unacceptable Conduct, Dress and Language on School Property for Staff and Visitors

A. Appropriate Attire for Employees

In the interest of maintaining a professional atmosphere and in serving as a role model for students; district employees will dress in an appropriate, professional manner, which sets a good example to the school community. Some examples of professional attire may include dress pants, khaki style slacks, collared shirts, or sweaters for men; skirts, slacks, blouses, or sweaters for women. More casual attire is appropriate for some school related activities such as field trips, school spirit days, or special days such as Friday charity days.

B. Language Deemed Appropriate For Employees

- 1. The Naples Central School Community believes that staff will demonstrate the use of appropriate and acceptable language at all times toward fellow staff, parents, visitors, and students. Appropriate language includes words that are courteous, non-offensive, non-confrontational, and without malice.
- 2. The School Board adopts the following language as unacceptable and inappropriate:

<u>a.</u> Verbal harassment on the basis of race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender (including <u>gender</u> <u>identity</u> is one's self-conception as being male or female, as distinguished from actual biological sex or sex assigned at birth and <u>gender expression</u> is the manner in which a person represents or expresses gender to others, often through behavior, clothing, hairstyles, activities, voice or mannerisms).

b. Profane or obscene words.

c. Verbal assault (the use of demeaning, derogatory, offensive, threatening, or abusive language)

C. Violations of School Code for Employees

The appropriate supervisor-in-charge will assess any violation of the Code for staff in accordance to collective bargaining unit agreements and applicable set forth policy. All incidents that violate criminal or civil law will result in the referral to the proper law enforcement agencies. Periodic in-service programs and compliance with the Code will be developed and presented by the District to the staff.

D. Visitors' Responsibilities Unacceptable and Inappropriate Behavior

Unacceptable and inappropriate behavior is defined as anyone on school property using equipment or participating in school sponsored activities that is not acting in a responsible manner, or is in any violation of the law. The Board adopts the following as examples of prohibited conduct including but not limited to:

- 1. Willful physical injury of any person, or the threat to use force that would result in such injury
- 2. Discrimination, harassment or retaliation against any person
- 3. Sexual harassment
- 4. Willful damage to, destruction of, or theft of property
- 5. Conduct that is disorderly, i.e., intentionally causing public inconvenience, annoyance or alarm, or recklessly creating a risk thereof by:
 - a. Fighting or engaging in violent behavior;
 - b. Making unreasonable noise;
 - c. Using abusive or obscene language or gestures;
 - d. Disturbing any lawful assembly or meeting of persons;
 - e. Obstructing vehicular or pedestrian traffic; or
 - f. Creating a hazardous or physically offensive condition by any act that serves no legitimate purpose.
- 6. Entry of any school building or any portion of the school premises unless such entry is made in connection with official business with the District or to attend an authorized activity or function
- 7. Remaining in or on District property after being ordered to leave.
- 8. Willful interference with the lawful and authorized activities of others.
- 9. Possession, consumption, sale, or exchange of alcoholic beverages, unauthorized drugs, drug paraphernalia, narcotics or herbal/chemical products designed to mimic the effects of marijuana (also known as synthetic cannabinoids, including but not limited to such brand names as "K2", "Spice", etc..).
- 10. Possession or use of a weapon, or use of any object that reasonably can be considered a weapon, or possession of a bomb or fireworks, etc. on property of the School District.
- 11. Violation of any federal or state statute, local ordinance, or Board policy.
- 12. Insubordination, i.e., failing to comply with the reasonable directions of a teacher, school administrator or other school employees.
- 13. Distribution, transfer, or sale of any item in or on the property of the District in such a way that is disruptive to the educational process.
- 14. Violation of rules and regulations when using school transportation. Any form of school transportation is considered school property, and anyone using it must adhere to District rules and regulations.
- 15. Unauthorized use of school transportation is forbidden. Anyone using school transportation must be engaged in an authorized school function.
- 16. Use of buses to which they are not assigned without following the procedure established for their school building.
- 17. The use of cigarettes or any other tobacco products (except as examples in curriculum based instruction) or herbal/chemical products or electronic devices designed to mimic the effects of tobacco products including but not limited to electronic cigarettes.
- 18. Inappropriate public displays of affection.

E. Acceptable Appropriate Attire for Visitors

Acceptable and appropriate attire may be defined as clothing or accessories that are suitable and not distracting to the educational environment or school sponsored events. Any outfit that is deemed to be unfit for school or school sponsored events may result in the visitor being asked to change, cover up or leave the premises.

Unacceptable and inappropriate attire may include the following:

- 1. Clothing that may be construed as disruptive or distracting (such as midriffs, see-through garments, short shorts).
- 2. Clothing or accessories that may include offensive images or slogans of sex, drugs, violence, or discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, religious practices, creed, national origin, ethnic origin, ethnic group, weight, disability, gender (including gender identity and expression), or sexual orientation.
- 3. Clothing or accessories that may be considered gang related.

F. Language Deemed Appropriate and Acceptable for Visitors

The Naples Central School Community believes that visitors will demonstrate respectful behavior by using appropriate and acceptable language toward teachers, administrators, and staff. Appropriate language includes words that are courteous, non-offensive and without malice.

The School Board adopts the following language as unacceptable and inappropriate:

- 1. Verbal harassment on the basis of race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender (including <u>gender identity</u> is one's self-conception as being male or female, as distinguished from actual biological sex or sex assigned at birth and <u>gender expression</u> is the manner in which a person represents or expresses gender to others, often through behavior, clothing, hairstyles, activities, voice or mannerisms).
- 2. Profane or obscene words.
- 3. Verbal assault (the use of demeaning, derogatory, offensive, threatening or abusive language) towards staff or students.
- 4. Excessive arguing with a teacher, administrator or staff.

G. Reporting of Incidents

If a violation in the school visitors' Code does occur, the following procedure is followed:

- 1. Notification to administrator in charge in a timely manner.
- 2. Administrator assesses situation and then:
 - a. Will deal with situation internally
 - b. Will inform police in violations that constitute a crime.

XIV. Dissemination of Code of Conduct

The Board will work to assure that the community is aware of this Code of Conduct by:

- 1. Providing copies of a summary of the Code to all students
- 2. A summary of the Code of Conduct will be made available annually to all parents of District students and will also be available later upon request.
- 3. Providing all current teachers and other staff members with a copy of the Code and a copy of any amendments to the Code as soon as practicable after adoption.
- 4. Providing all new employees with a copy of the current Code of conduct when they are first hired.
- 5. Making copies of the Code available for review by students, parents and other community members.

The District will provide in-service education programs for all District staff members to ensure the effective implementation of this Code, to promote a safe and supportive school climate while discouraging, among other things, discrimination and harassment against students by students and/or school employees and to include safe and supportive school climate concepts in the curriculum and classroom management. The Superintendent may solicit the recommendations of the District staff, particularly teachers and administrators, regarding in-service programs pertaining to the management and discipline of students.

The following are suggested programs that may be utilized for in-service education for all staff members to ensure effective implementation of this Code: (1) School-oriented programs developed at the district and building level; (2) Superintendent's workshop days; and (3) faculty meetings.

The Board of Education will review this Code of Conduct every year and update it as necessary. In conducting the review, the Board will consider how effective the Code's provisions have been and whether the code has been applied fairly and consistently.

The Board may appoint an advisory committee to assist in reviewing the code and the district's response to Code of Conduct violations. The committee will be made up of representatives of student, teacher, administrator, and parent organizations, school safety personnel and other school personnel.

Before adopting any revisions to the Code, the Board will hold at least one public hearing at which school personnel, parents, students and any other interested party may participate.

The Code of Conduct and any amendments to it will be filed with the Commissioner no later than 30 days after adoption.

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT MONTHLY REPORT OF THE TREASURER PERIOD ENDING JANUARY 2020

CASH BALANCE ON HAND:	GENERAL FUND	SCHOOL LUNCH FUND	FEDERAL FUND	CAPITAL FUND	T & A / Payroll	SCHOLARSHP FUNDS	PERMANENT FUNDS	DEBT SERVICE FUND
OPENING BALANCE:	\$7,903,828.14	\$56,605.04	\$129,167.10	\$55,270.35	\$824,332.47	\$169,175.68	\$10,253.36	\$636,683.91
+ CASH RECEIPTS	\$1,099,508.25	\$47,704.96	\$95,784.29	\$464,630.08	\$723,930.90	\$15.18	\$0.00	\$76.00
- CASH DISBURSEMENTS:	\$2,184,369.99	\$31,381.10	\$59,837.36	\$251,374.25	\$1,207,638.09	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$150,000.00
CLOSING BALANCE:	\$6,818,966.40	\$72,928.90	\$165,114.03	\$268,526.18	\$340,625.28	\$169,190.86	\$10,253.36	\$486,759.91

BANK RECONCILIATION:	GENERAL FUND	SCHOOL LUNCH FUND	FEDERAL FUND	CAPITAL FUND	TRUST & AGENCY	SCHOLARSHP FUNDS	PERMANENT FUNDS	DEBT SERVICE FUND
CHECKING BANK STATEMENT BALANCE	\$3,320,786.45	\$76,239.95	\$165,114.03	\$252,229.48	\$380,941.09	\$5,052.29	\$10,253.36	\$486,759.91
+ OUTSTANDING DEPOSITS	\$35.00	\$657.51	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$35.00	\$70.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
ADJUSTED CHECKING BALANCE	\$3,320,821.45	\$76,897.46	\$165,114.03	\$252,229.48	\$380,976.09	\$5,122.29	\$10,253.36	\$486,759.91
-OUTSTANDING CHECKS	\$268,210.67	\$3,968.56	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40,350.81	\$1,495.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
+SAVINGS ACCOUNTS & INVESTMENTS	(\$1,952,047.52)	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$16,296.70	\$0.00	\$165,563.57	\$0.00	\$0.00
+MISCELLANEOUS RESERVES	\$3,337,581.63	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
+CAPITAL RESERVES	\$2,380,821.51	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
CLOSING BALANCE:	\$6,818,966.40	\$72,928.90	\$165,114.03	\$268,526.18	\$340,625.28	\$169,190.86	\$10,253.36	\$486,759.91

Received by the Board of Education and entered as a part of the minutes of the Board meeting held

March 18, 2020 an Clerk of the Board of Education

This is to certify that the above Cash Balance is in agreement with my bank statement, as reconciled. 0 Treasurer of School District

Naples Central School District GENERAL FUND Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020

Cycle 07

Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

G/L Account	Description	Debits	Credits
	Assets		
200.0B	Cash - FIVE STAR CK.	634,436.48	
200.0C	Cash - JPMORGAN CHASE BANK	2,418,174.30	
200.1B	5*Bank -GF Savings	181,960.59	
201.40	JP MORGAN CHASE MONEY MARKET	3,584,395.03	
210.00	Petty Cash	100.00	
250.00	Taxes Receivable, Current	516,154.14	
380.00	Accounts Receivable	25,604.48	
391.10	Due From Other Funds - Cafe	115,514.41	
391.20	Due From Other Funds -Federal	425,411.65	
391.30	Due From Other Funds - Capital	4,810,000.00	
391.40	Due From Other Funds -T&A	187,366.33	
391.41	Due From Other Funds -T&A(HI)	291.49	
391.50	Due From Other Funds -Payroll	5.58	
410.AR	Due From State and Federal	112.19	
440.AR	Due From Other Governments	109.20	
	Budgetary and Expense	Accounts	
510.00	Total Est. RevModified Budg.	20,149,767.00	
521.00	Encumbrances	7,591,708.57	
522.00	Expenditures	9,446,681.80	
599.00	Appropriated Fund Balance	1,121,952.02	
599.00	Appropriated Fund Balance		
		rves	101,615.07
601.10	FLEX MEDICAL LIABILITY		5,190.75
630.00	Due To Other Funds		116,133.48
630.FF	Due To Federal Funds		272,426.38
632.00	Due to State Teachers'Ret.Sys	46 949 75	212,420.50
637.00	Due to Employees' Ret. System	46,848.75	44,508.01
687.00	Compensated Absences		1,897.28
695.00	Def Tax Rev - Reserve Exc Tax		
815.00	Unemployment Insurance Reserve		40,248.73 7,591,708.57
821.00	Reserve for Encumbrances		, ,
827.00	Retirement Contrib Reserve		1,601,838.03
828.00	Retire Contr Res Acct TRS Sub-		117,043.00
861.00	Reserve For Property Loss - In		86,116.09
862.00	Reserve For Liability		20,714.30
863.00	Insurance Reserve		114,265.14
864.00	Reserve for Tax Certiorari		193,821.45
867.00	Rsrv Empl Benefits/Accr Liab		1,158,604.45
878.00	Capital Reserve - Building		1,789,593.81
878.01	Capital Reserve - Transport Bld		463,385.22
878.02	Capital Reserve - Buses		240,256.30
914.00	Assigned Appropriated Fund Bal		350,000.00
917.00	Unassigned Fund Balance		1,150,043.49
	Budgetary and Revenue	Accounts	
960.00	Total Appropriations-Mod.Budg.		21,271,719.02
980.00	Revenues		14,525,465.44
	Grand Totals	51,256,594.01	51,256,594.01

The reporting period selected for this report includes an accounting cycle that is not closed and information is therefore subject to change. No accounting cycles have been closed for this fund in this fiscal year.

* - To include Budgetary entries for the current month, run the report through the last day of the cycle

Revenue Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Revenue Account	Subfund	Description	Original Estimate	Current Estimate	Year-to-Date	Current Cycle	Anticipated Balance	Excess Revenue
1001.000		Real Property Taxes	11,686,736.00	11,686,736.00	10,806,639.10	0.00	880,096.90	
1081.000		Other Pmts in Lieu of Tax	127,492.00	127,492.00	109,236.96	0.00	18,255.04	
1085.000		STAR Reimbursement	0.00	0.00	876,675.88	0.00		876,675.88
1090.000		Int. & Penal. on Real Prop.Tax	21,500.00	21,500.00	12,102.80	0.00	9,397.20	
1315.000		Continuing Ed Tuition(Individ)	342.00	342.00	0.00	0.00	342.00	
1335.000		Oth Student Fee/Charges (10,000.00	10,000.00	2,624.11	1,464.95	7,375.89	
1410.000		Admissions (from Individu	3,000.00	3,000.00	846.00	100.00	2,154.00	
2230.000		Day School Tuit-Oth Dist.	9,000.00	9,000.00	960.00	0.00	8,040.00	
2389.000		Other Ser for Oth Dist	3,000.00	3,000.00	10,746.40	123.90		7,746.40
2401.000		Interest and Earnings	11,000.00	11,000.00	3,370.01	560.26	7,629.99	
2680.000		Insurance Recoveries	0.00	0.00	11,018.68	0.00		11,018.68
2690.000		Other Compensation for Lo	0.00	0.00	300.00	100.00		300.00
2701.000		Refund PY Exp-BOCES Aided	15,000.00	15,000.00	0.00	0.00	15,000.00	
2703.000		Refund PY Exp-Other-Not T	2,500.00	2,500.00	16,553.84	0.00		14,053.84
2703.100		E-Rate Funds	1,000.00	1,000.00	0.00	0.00	1,000.00	
2705.000		Gifts and Donations	1,000.00	1,000.00	0.00	0.00	1,000.00	
2770.000		Other Unclassified Rev.(S	15,000.00	15,000.00	2,081.30	6.55	12,918.70	
3101.000		Basic Formula Aid-Gen Aid	7,319,225.00	7,319,225.00	1,530,587.28	0.00	5,788,637.72	
3102.000		Lottery Aid	213,055.00	213,055.00	477,873.51	0.00		264,818.51
3102.001		VLT Lottery Aid	0.00	0.00	214,971.12	46,065.24		214,971.12
3103.000		BOCES Aid (Sect 3609a Ed	482,332.00	482,332.00	0.00	0.00	482,332.00	
3192.000		Excess Cost	0.00	0.00	224,149.75	0.00		224,149.75
3260.000		Textbook Aid (Incl Txtbk/	39,054.00	39,054.00	9,930.00	0.00	29,124.00	
3262.000		Computer Sftwre, Hrdwre A	14,905.00	14,905.00	0.00	0.00	14,905.00	
3263.000		Library A/V Loan Program	4,626.00	4,626.00	0.00	0.00	4,626.00	
4601.000		Medic.Ass't-Sch Age-Sch Y	20,000.00	20,000.00	64,798.70	6,165.83		44,798.70
5050.000		Interfund Trans. for Debt	150,000.00	150,000.00	150,000.00	150,000.00		
5999.000		Appropriated Fund Balance	550,000.00	799,898.83	0.00	0.00	799,898.83	
5999.999		Est. for Carryover Encumbrance	0.00	322,053.19	0.00	0.00	322,053.19	
Total GENERAL FUND			20,699,767.00	21,271,719.02	14,525,465.44	204,586.73	8,404,786.46	1,658,532.88

* Estimated revenue for Carryover Encumbrances from the prior fiscal year will not be realized.

These are estimates to balance the budget

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020 Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
1010-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	7,500.00	-25.00	7,475.00	2,625.52	85.00	4,764.48	
1010-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	1,500.00	0.00	1,500.00	365.14	283.46	851.40	
1010-490-00-0000	BOCES	2,400.00	25.00	2,425.00	1,212.50	1,212.50	0.00	
1040-160-00-0000	Non-Instructional Salary	13,824.00	0.00	13,824.00	8,338.66	2,545.07	2,940.27	
1040-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense-clerk	625.00	0.00	625.00	114.64	0.00	510.36	
1040-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	700.00	0.00	700.00	125.00	0.00	575.00	
1060-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	950.00	400.00	1,350.00	260.90	500.00	589.10	
1060-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	700.00	100.00	800.00	0.00	800.00	0.00	
1240-150-00-0000	Instructional Salaries	151,125.00	-6,765.60	144,359.40	88,729.44	55,455.98	173.98	
1240-160-00-0000	Non-Instructional Salary	22,930.00	6,765.60	29,695.60	18,390.07	11,342.62	-37.09	
1240-200-00-0000	Equipment	500.00	0.00	500.00	0.00	0.00	500.00	
1240-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	13,300.00	32,200.00	45,500.00	29,807.62	15,590.02	102.36	
1240-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	1,700.00	0.00	1,700.00	88.45	109.90	1,501.65	
1310-150-00-0000	Business Administrator	95,701.00	-16,729.37	78,971.63	53,802.46	45,344.00	-20,174.83	
1310-160-00-0000	Non-Instructional Salary	69,473.00	0.00	69,473.00	40,956.10	24,956.97	3,559.93	
1310-161-00-0000	Business Admin Extra H	3,490.00	0.00	3,490.00	1,637.29	0.00	1,852.71	
1310-200-00-0000	Equipment	2,000.00	-1,500.00	500.00	0.00	0.00	500.00	
1310-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	37,962.00	16,425.00	54,387.00	38,454.13	15,910.26	22.61	
1310-450-00-0000	Materials/Supp	7,000.00	1,150.00	8,150.00	6,071.52	1,499.11	579.37	
1310-451-00-0000	Postage	4,000.00	0.00	4,000.00	1,475.90	2,504.60	19.50	
1310-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	186,150.00	0.00	186,150.00	93,105.13	92,651.87	393.00	
1320-160-00-0000	Non-Instructional Salary	2,877.00	0.00	2,877.00	1,511.52	944.73	420.75	
1320-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	17,200.00	-1,650.00	15,550.00	15,550.00	0.00	0.00	
1330-160-00-0000	Non-Instructional Salary	2,665.00	750.00	3,415.00	1, 681.12	1,050.70	683.18	
1330-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	5,621.00	0.00	5,621.00	5,168.03	0.00	452.97	
1330-450-00-0000	Materials & Supplies	400.00	0.00	400.00	0.00	0.00	400.00	
1330-451-00-0000	Postage	4,000.00	0.00	4,000.00	3,144.57	0.00	855.43	
1345-160-00-0000	Purchasing-Non Instr Sal	31,140.00	14,479.37	45,619.37	28,218.75	17,400.62	0.00	
1345-400-00-0000	Purchasing Contractual	400.00	0.00	400.00	0.00	0.00	400.00	
1345-450-00-0000	Purchasing Supplies / Mat	512.00	0.00	512.00	0.00	0.00	512.00	
1345-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	5,169.00	0.00	5,169.00	2,584.50	2,584.50	0.00	
1380-400-00-0000	Fiscal Agent Fees	7,000.00	1,311.20	8,311.20	1,299.37	5,700.63	1,311.20	
1420-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	37,000.00	-6,200.00	30,800.00	9,818.76	20,181.24	800.00	
1420-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	25,518.00	200.00	25,718.00	12,862.63	12,854.37	1.00	
1430-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	1,000.00	0.00	1,000.00	0.00	0.00	1,000.00	
1430-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	16,739.00	0.00	16,739.00	3,329.53	13,409.47	0.00	
1460-450-00-0000	Records Mgmt. Mat. & Supp	200.00	0.00	200.00	91.86	0.00	108.14	
1480-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	25,000.00	27,714.85	52,714.85	36,814.17	15,435.83	464.85	

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
1480-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	200.00	0.00	200.00	0.00	0.00	200.00	
1480-451-00-0000	Postage	1,800.00	0.00	1,800.00	0.00	0.00	1,800.00	
1480-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	2,500.00	0.00	2,500.00	0.00	2,500.00	0.00	
1620-160-01-0000	Salaries-High School-O	154,364.00	0.00	154,364.00	85,146.98	69,581.34	-364.32	
1620-160-02-0000	Salaries-Elementary-O	119,401.00	-7,146.00	112,255.00	51,396.73	14,179.94	46,678.33	
1620-161-01-0000	High School-Overtime-O	7,000.00	0.00	7,000.00	4,619.48	0.00	2,380.52	
1620-161-02-0000	Elementary Overtime-O	8,000.00	0.00	8,000.00	1,535.50	0.00	6,464.50	
1620-163-00-0000	Salaries-Substitutes	17,000.00	-8,000.00	9,000.00	4,739.33	0.00	4,260.67	
1620-200-00-0000	EquipmentOperations	30,000.00	0.00	30,000.00	0.00	0.00	30,000.00	
1620-401-01-0000	Operations - Telephone -	2,700.00	0.00	2,700.00	1,420.58	1,144.42	135.00	
1620-401-02-0000	Operations - Telephone -	2,700.00	0.00	2,700.00	1,420.58	1,144.42	135.00	
1620-450-00-0000	Supplies-Operations	30,000.00	8,944.00	38,944.00	21,566.96	7,753.62	9,623.42	
1620-462-01-0000	Water-High School	8,000.00	1,293.58	9,293.58	2,154.76	7,138.82	0.00	
1620-462-02-0000	Water-Elementary	8,000.00	1,362.55	9,362.55	2,575.66	6,786.89	0.00	
1620-463-01-0000	Electricity-High School	89,760.00	6,000.00	95,760.00	45,656.79	49,643.21	460.00	
1620-463-02-0000	Electricity-Elementary	51,000.00	-13,800.00	37,200.00	16,813.65	20,386.35	0.00	
1620-464-01-0000	Gas-High School	66,000.00	-4,000.00	62,000.00	15,293.32	46,706.68	0.00	
1620-464-02-0000	Gas-Elementary	43,260.00	-10,000.00	33,260.00	11,607.55	21,642.45	10.00	
1620-469-00-0000	Contracts-Operations	55,000.00	31,933.36	86,933.36	64,013.07	22,920.29	0.00	
1620-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	18,000.00	0.00	18,000.00	6,560.60	11,439.40	0.00	
1621-160-01-0000	Salaries-High School-M	71,587.00	-25,500.00	46,087.00	30,567.62	9,946.85	5,572.53	
1621-160-02-0000	Salaries Es	72,090.00	29,418.43	101,508.43	62,262.66	37,815.77	1,430.00	
1621-161-01-0000	High School-Overtime-M	6,000.00	-1,500.00	4,500.00	990.01	0.00	3,509.99	
1621-161-02-0000	Overtime Es	6,000.00	1,500.00	7,500.00	4,248.44	0.00	3,251.56	
1621-170-00-0000	Capital Project Hours-Mnt	0.00	3,227.57	3,227.57	3,227.57	0.00	0.00	
1621-200-00-0000	EquipmentMaintenance	64,000.00	36,150.00	100,150.00	36,150.00	0.00	64,000.00	
1621-450-00-0000	Materials & Supplies	67,700.00	30,212.16	97,912.16	58,201.50	33,945.28	5,765.38	
1621-467-00-0000	Building Repairs -mainten	20,000.00	-15,000.00	5,000.00	1,044.55	3,705.45	250.00	
1621-468-00-0000	Grounds Upkeep -Maintenan	5,000.00	-5,000.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
1621-469-00-0000	Maintenance-Service Contr	38,540.00	33,189.81	71,729.81	14,285.24	7,708.26	49,736.31	
1621-471-00-0000	Maintenance-Equip Repair	30,500.00	-29,500.00	1,000.00	330.73	669.27	0.00	
1621-478-00-0000	Equip Repair - Pool	1,500.00	-1,500.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
1621-479-00-0000	Pool Supplies	7,550.00	0.00	7,550.00	607.24	6,942.76	0.00	
1670-490-00-0000	BOCES Srv-Printing	7,000.00	0.00	7,000.00	0.00	6,950.00	50.00	
1680-150-00-0000	Instructional Salaries	39,784.00	-24,000.00	15,784.00	0.00	0.00	15,784.00	
1680-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	158,500.00	0.00	158,500.00	115,468.68	43,031.32	0.00	
1910-400-00-0000	Unallocated Insurance	77,268.00	-2,000.00	75,268.00	66,983.70	65.00	8,219.30	
1920-400-00-0000	School Assn Dues	8,000.00	0.00	8,000.00	7,147.00	0.00	853.00	
1964-400-00-0000	Refund of Real Prop Tax	2,000.00	0.00	2,000.00	0.00	0.00	2,000.00	

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
1981-490-00-0000	BOCES - Administrative	60,320.00	0.00	60,320.00	30,160.00	30,160.00	0.00	
1983-490-00-0000	BOCES - Capital Construct	46,942.00	10,000.00	56,942.00	33,204.00	23,471.00	267.00	
1989-400-00-0000	Unclassified Expense	4,084.00	0.00	4,084.00	0.00	0.00	4,084.00	
2010-150-00-0000	Instructional Salaries	95,822.00	0.00	95,822.00	8,805.00	0.00	87,017.00	
2010-150-01-0000	Instructinal Sal-HIGH SCH	900.00	0.00	900.00	0.00	0.00	900.00	
2010-150-02-0000	Instructinal Sal-ELEM SCH	9,400.00	0.00	9,400.00	360.00	0.00	9,040.00	
2010-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	500.00	114.33	614.33	576.13	0.00	38.20	
2020-150-00-0000	Instructional Salaries	258,626.00	24,000.00	282,626.00	177,576.42	114,401.09	-9,351.51	
2020-160-00-0000	Non-Inst Salaries	68,903.00	-1,116.01	67,786.99	40,676.76	24,313.60	2,796.63	
2020-161-00-0000	NON-INSTR EXTRA HOURS	0.00	1,116.01	1,116.01	1,116.01	0.00	0.00	
2020-200-01-0000	Equipment H.S.	4,000.00	0.00	4,000.00	0.00	0.00	4,000.00	
2020-200-02-0000	Equipment Elem	2,000.00	0.00	2,000.00	0.00	0.00	2,000.00	
2020-400-01-0000	Contractual Expense H.S.	16,500.00	700.00	17,200.00	3,976.27	1,316.08	11,907.65	
2020-400-02-0000	Contractual Expense Elem	5,500.00	1,213.36	6,713.36	2,199.66	1,304.88	3,208.82	
2020-450-01-0000	Materials and Supplies Hs	18,000.00	-311.94	17,688.06	2,530.52	161.90	14,995.64	
2020-450-02-0000	Mat and Supplies Elem	11,250.00	22,554.10	33,804.10	25,529.29	1,233.59	7,041.22	
2020-490-00-0000	BOCES	3,630.00	0.00	3,630.00	0.00	3,630.00	0.00	
2070-150-00-0000	Instructional Salaries	20,400.00	46,000.00	66,400.00	40,316.20	25,298.30	785.50	
2070-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	4,000.00	0.00	4,000.00	2,000.00	0.00	2,000.00	
2070-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	57,000.00	0.00	57,000.00	13,044.85	43,955.15	0.00	
2110-100-02-0000	Teachers Sal Pre-K	15,697.00	3,882.30	19,579.30	8,237.40	11,341.90	0.00	
2110-120-02-0000	Teachers Salaries 4-6	757,687.00	-27,882.30	729,804.70	323,846.40	404,750.75	1,207.55	
2110-120-02-1000	Teachers Sall-Kdg - 3	771,322.00	34,336.95	805,658.95	355,292.29	450,366.66	0.00	
2110-130-01-0000	Teachers Salaries 7-12	1,880,370.00	-12,311.95	1,868,058.05	840,928.95	985,660.05	41,469.05	
2110-130-01-0010	Homework Tutoring	10,000.00	0.00	10,000.00	0.00	0.00	10,000.00	
2110-130-01-0020	Homework Tutoring - Susp	8,000.00	0.00	8,000.00	180.00	0.00	7,820.00	
2110-140-01-0000	Teachers Substitutes Hs	53,533.00	-875.73	52,657.27	29,502.68	0.00	23,154.59	
2110-140-02-0000	Teacher Subs Elem	43,047.00	875.73	43,922.73	47,387.73	0.00	-3,465.00	
2110-150-00-9999	Faculty Attend -Elem-k-3	18,448.00	0.00	18,448.00	0.00	0.00	18,448.00	
2110-160-00-0000	Non-Inst Salaries	337,422.00	-4,451.73	332,970.27	179,772.89	142,399.57	10,797.81	
2110-161-00-0000	Non-Inst Sal-EXTRA HOURS	9,000.00	0.00	9,000.00	6,131.46	0.00	2,868.54	
2110-163-00-0000	NON INSTRUCT - SUBSTITUTE	8,000.00	4,451.73	12,451.73	12,956.18	0.00	-504.45	
2110-200-01-1700	Equipment Hs Furniture	7,500.00	0.00	7,500.00	3,792.38	0.00	3,707.62	
2110-200-01-1800	Equipment General Hs Educ	9,000.00	-5,500.00	3,500.00	0.00	0.00	3,500.00	
2110-200-02-1400	Equipment Elem Music	0.00	2,000.00	2,000.00	1,000.00	0.00	1,000.00	
2110-200-02-1700	Equipment Elem Furniture	7,500.00	209.84	7,709.84	209.84	2,072.64	5,427.36	
2110-200-02-1800	Equipment Elem General	4,500.00	-2,000.00	2,500.00	0.00	0.00	2,500.00	
2110-400-01-0000	Contractual HS	6,000.00	14,838.88	20,838.88	11,293.26	7,147.64	2,397.98	

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
2110-400-01-1100	Contractual Technology	1,100.00	-91.00	1,009.00	0.00	600.00	409.00	
2110-400-01-1300	Contractual Inst Music	3,700.00	0.00	3,700.00	1,672.88	1,987.12	40.00	
2110-400-01-1302	Marching Band Contractual	1,500.00	-130.00	1,370.00	1,200.55	150.00	19.45	
2110-400-01-1400	Contractual Vocal Music	3,800.00	540.00	4,340.00	890.00	3,450.00	0.00	
2110-400-01-1500	Contractual Science	300.00	800.00	1,100.00	799.00	300.00	1.00	
2110-400-01-1599	Contractual Robotics Team	5,000.00	0.00	5,000.00	5,000.00	0.00	0.00	
2110-400-01-1600	Contractual Soc Studies	500.00	-319.00	181.00	180.70	0.00	0.30	
2110-400-01-8000	Contractual Expense PE HS	0.00	200.00	200.00	0.00	200.00	0.00	
2110-400-02-0000	Contractual - Elementary	6,000.00	500.00	6,500.00	3,112.89	1,142.61	2,244.50	
2110-400-02-1300	Contractual- Inst. Music	2,430.00	0.00	2,430.00	687.90	1,728.10	14.00	
2110-400-02-1400	Contractual Vocal Music	350.00	0.00	350.00	134.00	0.00	216.00	
2110-400-02-3000	Contractual Art Elem	1,000.00	-900.00	100.00	0.00	0.00	100.00	
2110-400-02-8000	Contractual - PE Elementa	300.00	150.00	450.00	0.00	450.00	0.00	
2110-403-01-0000	Contractual - Tuition	40,000.00	-29,498.00	10,502.00	480.00	0.00	10,022.00	
2110-404-00-0000	CONTRACTUAL SHIPPING	5,000.00	0.00	5,000.00	129.25	750.00	4,120.75	
2110-450-00-0000	Supplies -District	10,000.00	0.00	10,000.00	3,396.78	0.00	6,603.22	
2110-450-01-1100	Supplies HS-Technology	10,250.00	414.56	10,664.56	7,016.25	2,794.35	853.96	
2110-450-01-1200	Supplies Mathematics	1,750.00	420.00	2,170.00	1,925.79	240.00	4.21	
2110-450-01-1300	Supplies Inst Music	1,400.00	18,752.40	20,152.40	20,139.57	0.00	12.83	
2110-450-01-1302	Supplies Marching Band&Co	2,600.00	52,189.60	54,789.60	2,793.55	51,989.60	6.45	
2110-450-01-1400	Supplies Vocal Music	750.00	1,927.10	2,677.10	2,467.13	0.00	209.97	
2110-450-01-1500	Supplies Science	3,100.00	445.00	3,545.00	2,984.74	539.55	20.71	
2110-450-01-1502	Supplies Health	220.00	415.00	635.00	633.25	0.00	1.75	
2110-450-01-1599	Supplies Science - Roboti	5,000.00	0.00	5,000.00	5,000.00	0.00	0.00	
2110-450-01-1600	Supplies Social Studies	1,650.00	1,525.00	3,175.00	2,182.87	989.28	2.85	
2110-450-01-1800	Supplies - HS- Spec Ed	1,600.00	0.00	1,600.00	0.00	0.00	1,600.00	
2110-450-01-2300	Supplies General Hs Ed	12,000.00	17,207.60	29,207.60	23,721.89	2,628.21	2,857.50	
2110-450-01-3000	Supplies High School Art	15,000.00	0.00	15,000.00	11,001.47	285.90	3,712.63	
2110-450-01-5000	Supplies English	1,300.00	261.94	1,561.94	977.13	509.51	75.30	
2110-450-01-6000	Supplies Language	750.00	370.00	1,120.00	1,118.81	0.00	1.19	
2110-450-01-8000	Supplies Phys Ed Hs	3,700.00	-200.00	3,500.00	3,253.08	0.00	246.92	
2110-450-01-9000	Supplies Home & Career	1,550.00	460.00	2,010.00	1,282.57	396.94	330.49	
2110-450-02-1300	Supplies Inst Music	2,350.00	0.00	2,350.00	1,700.38	640.15	9.47	
2110-450-02-1400	Supplies Elem Music	3,250.00	0.00	3,250.00	2,860.68	70.00	319.32	
2110-450-02-1598	Supplies Science - STEAM	0.00	900.00	900.00	874.45	0.00		
2110-450-02-2400	Supplies UPK-2	9,250.00	22,534.91	31,784.91	31,413.69	368.25	2.97	
2110-450-02-2401	Supplies 3-4	3,350.00	165.00	3,515.00	2,934.74	576.53		
2110-450-02-2402	Supplies 5 Thru 6	5,450.00	0.00	5,450.00	4,965.79	481.15	3.06	
2110-450-02-2610	Supplies General Elem Ed	2,300.00	27,045.20	29,345.20	29,010.46	92.16	242.58	

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
2110-450-02-3000	Supplies Elementary Art	4,700.00	0.00	4,700.00	4,561.77	8.12	130.11	
2110-450-02-8000	Supplies Phys Ed Elem	3,350.00	-150.00	3,200.00	2,728.47	0.00	471.53	
2110-451-01-0000	Postage-GenEd HS	8,000.00	0.00	8,000.00	2,443.75	3,056.25	2,500.00	
2110-451-02-0000	Postage-GenEd Elem	3,000.00	0.00	3,000.00	1,287.15	1,212.85	500.00	
2110-459-00-0000	SUPPLIES-STATE ASSESSMENT	10,000.00	0.00	10,000.00	0.00	0.00	10,000.00	
2110-480-00-0000	Textbooks-DISTRICT WIDE	40,000.00	9,863.00	49,863.00	43,294.44	4,210.06	2,358.50	
2110-490-00-0000	BOCES-Instructional	41,291.00	25,500.00	66,791.00	32,406.46	34,384.54	0.00	
2250-150-00-2001	Instructional Salaries Hs	431,663.00	18,396.48	450,059.48	222,798.20	227,261.28	0.00	
2250-150-00-2002	Instructional Salaries El	292,558.00	-18,396.48	274,161.52	126,921.22	137,974.12	9,266.18	
2250-150-00-2010	Instructional Salaries-Tu	25,462.00	0.00	25,462.00	1,754.21	0.00	23,707.79	
2250-160-00-2001	Non-Inst Salaries Hs	54,262.00	-3,162.74	51,099.26	26,699.84	14,494.70	9,904.72	
2250-160-00-2002	Non-Inst Salaries El Sch	102,121.00	0.00	102,121.00	52,896.78	43,106.16	6,118.06	
2250-161-00-0000	Non-Inst Sal-EXTRA HOURS	0.00	756.81	756.81	791.60	0.00	-34.79	
2250-163-00-0000	NON INSTR.Salaries-Subs	0.00	2,405.93	2,405.93	2,559.33	0.00	-153.40	
2250-200-00-0000	Equipment	1,000.00	0.00	1,000.00	0.00	0.00	1,000.00	
2250-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	45,000.00	-226.62	44,773.38	11,085.32	5,606.41	28,081.65	
2250-406-00-0000	Conferences- Spec. Ed.	4,000.00	0.00	4,000.00	0.00	245.00	3,755.00	
2250-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	8,200.00	5,000.00	13,200.00	10,393.60	2,012.11	794.29	
2250-451-00-0000	Special Ed. Postage	2,500.00	0.00	2,500.00	528.40	1,971.60	0.00	
2250-471-00-0000	Prog/Handi Tuit - NYS Pub	90,000.00	51,500.00	141,500.00	55,463.00	0.00	86,037.00	
2250-472-00-0000	Prog/HandiTuition-Other	106,000.00	0.00	106,000.00	39,087.00	39,087.00	27,826.00	
2250-480-00-0000	Textbooks	4,000.00	-2,500.00	1,500.00	1,240.47	0.00	259.53	
2250-490-00-0000	BOCES Tuition-Spec Ed	1,280,000.00	0.00	1,280,000.00	442,012.95	830,086.66	7,900.39	
2280-490-01-0000	BOCES Services	179,046.00	0.00	179,046.00	89,523.00	89,523.00	0.00	
2330-150-01-0000	Instructional Sal-Summ Sc	13,792.00	0.00	13,792.00	11,044.30	0.00	2,747.70	
2330-150-02-0000	Instruct. Sal Sum Schl	48,880.00	0.00	48,880.00	27,855.45	2,476.56	18,547.99	
2330-160-02-0000	Non-Instr Sal Summer Schl	21,597.00	0.00	21,597.00	6,940.27	1,282.28	13,374.45	
2330-490-00-0000	BOCES-Summer School	13,000.00	0.00	13,000.00	4,277.67	8,722.33	0.00	
2610-150-00-0000	Instructional Salaries	117,206.00	1,975.00	119,181.00	50,422.65	68,758.35	0.00	
2610-160-00-0000	Non-Inst Salaries	19,597.00	0.00	19,597.00	10,779.91	8,744.81	72.28	
2610-161-00-0000	Non-Inst Sal-EXTRA HOURS	0.00	132.83	132.83	132.83	0.00	0.00	
2610-450-01-2607	Hs Av Software	110.00	0.00	110.00	20.29	0.00	89.71	
2610-450-01-2609	Hs Supplies	225.00	50.00	275.00	253.98	19.00	2.02	
2610-450-02-2610	Elementary Supplies	380.00	50.00	430.00	426.97	0.00	3.03	
2610-460-01-2606	High School Books	4,100.00	15.79	4,115.79	2,320.10	336.58	1,459.11	
2610-460-01-2611	Hs Periodicals	1,070.00	0.00	1,070.00	672.34	234.95		
2610-460-02-2606	Elementary Books	10,100.00	84.00	10,184.00	6,896.14	1,791.54	1,496.32	
2610-460-02-2611	Elementary Periodicals	800.00	0.00	800.00	406.05	308.88	85.07	

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020 Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
2610-490-00-2613	BOCES Services Ed Com	32,319.00	0.00	32,319.00	13,946.49	18,372.51	0.00	
2630-150-00-0000	Cai - Instructional Salar	46,320.00	17,000.00	63,320.00	41,652.42	20,685.58	982.00	
2630-160-00-0000	Cai - Non Inst Salary	73,480.00	-760.16	72,719.84	44,718.09	27,862.94	138.81	
2630-161-00-0000	CAI - Non Inst Sal-EXTRA	0.00	627.33	627.33	627.33	0.00	0.00	
2630-220-00-0000	Computer Equip-State Aid	35,500.00	25,605.90	61,105.90	37,820.06	645.00	22,640.84	
2630-400-00-0000	Computer-Contractual	15,000.00	130.83	15,130.83	6,205.62	1,480.83	7,444.38	
2630-450-00-0000	Computer Mtls/Suppl	26,200.00	0.00	26,200.00	10,995.77	5,511.04	9,693.19	
2630-460-00-0000	Comp St Aid Software	25,500.00	0.00	25,500.00	3,111.75	603.34	21,784.91	
2630-490-00-0000	BOCES Services	463,836.00	0.00	463,836.00	123,775.43	340,060.57	0.00	
2805-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	250.00	0.00	250.00	0.00	0.00	250.00	
2810-150-01-0000	Instructional Salary	147,288.00	1,618.15	148,906.15	76,522.38	71,689.13	694.64	
2810-160-01-0000	Non-Inst Salary	44,421.00	-1,882.29	42,538.71	16,435.49	12,831.85	13,271.37	
2810-161-00-0000	Non-Inst SaL-EXTRA HOURS	0.00	264.14	264.14	264.14	0.00	0.00	
2810-400-01-0000	Contractual Expense	13,000.00	0.00	13,000.00	414.00	2,400.00	10,186.00	
2810-450-01-0000	Materials and Supplies	1,500.00	0.00	1,500.00	280.17	0.00	1,219.83	
2810-451-01-0000	Guidance - Postage	2,000.00	0.00	2,000.00	510.30	1,489.70	0.00	
2815-160-00-0000	Non-Instr Salary	81,889.00	4,000.00	85,889.00	47,566.91	38,219.04	103.05	
2815-161-00-0000	Non-Instr Sal-EXTRA HOURS	0.00	2,000.00	2,000.00	1,715.53	0.00	284.47	
2815-400-00-0000	Contractual Expense	65,552.00	-6,975.00	58,577.00	20,142.05	32,695.97	5,738.98	
2815-400-02-0000	Contractual Elem	0.00	975.00	975.00	973.00	0.00	2.00	
2815-450-01-0000	Materials and Supplies Hs	800.00	0.00	800.00	415.44	210.83	173.73	
2815-450-02-0000	Materials/Supplies Elem	800.00	0.00	800.00	361.99	208.53	229.48	
2820-150-00-0000	Psychology Inst Salary	219,977.00	0.00	219,977.00	101,751.20	118,225.80	0.00	
2820-200-00-0000	Equipment	300.00	0.00	300.00	0.00	0.00	300.00	
2820-400-00-0000	Contracted Expenses	200.00	0.00	200.00	0.00	75.00	125.00	
2820-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	1,500.00	0.00	1,500.00	913.99	0.00	586.01	
2850-150-01-0000	Instructional Salaries	92,337.00	0.00	92,337.00	25,193.94	24,438.74	42,704.32	
2850-400-01-0000	Contractual Expense	2,500.00	0.00	2,500.00	1,640.10	0.00	859.90	
2850-450-01-0000	Materials and Supplies	1,000.00	0.00	1,000.00	0.00	0.00	1,000.00	
2855-150-01-0000	Instructional Salaries	164,369.00	-5,000.00	159,369.00	91,577.70	28,656.40	39,134.90	
2855-160-01-0000	Non Instructional Salarie	0.00	5,000.00	5,000.00	1,481.45	0.00	3,518.55	
2855-400-01-2706	Contractual Expense Boys	18,456.00	0.00	18,456.00	7,574.15	6,097.70	4,784.15	
2855-400-01-2707	Contractual Expense Girls	18,435.00	0.00	18,435.00	6,125.32	5,921.88	6,387.80	
2855-400-01-2712	Contrctul Exp Other Sport	19,920.00	0.00	19,920.00	4,489.91	1,286.34	14,143.75	
2855-450-01-2711	Supplies Boys Sports	3,000.00	0.00	3,000.00	2,362.64	166.67	470.69	
2855-450-01-2712	Supplies Girls Sports	3,150.00	0.00	3,150.00	2,219.76	166.67	763.57	
2855-450-01-2713	Supplies Other	3,000.00	0.00	3,000.00	1,395.34	873.79	730.87	
2855-450-01-2714	Boys Uniforms	2,650.00	0.00	2,650.00	1,155.72	930.00	564.28	
2855-450-01-2715	Girls Uniforms	5,340.00	0.00	5,340.00	4,270.11	0.00	1,069.89	

_

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020 Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
2855-450-01-2716	Other Uniforms	4,823.00	0.00	4,823.00	0.00	0.00	4,823.00	
5510-150-03-2800	Salaries Trans Supv	0.00	9,529.57	9,529.57	5,864.32	3,665.25	0.00	
5510-150-03-2808	SALARIES - BUSINESS ADMIN	23,425.00	1,438.96	24,863.96	13,296.21	11,336.00	231.75	
5510-160-03-0000	Non-Instruct Salary-Trans	41,910.00	-38,910.00	3,000.00	0.00	3,000.00	0.00	
5510-160-03-2800	Non-Instr Salary- Supervi	43,651.00	-8,309.50	35,341.50	21,748.64	13,592.86	0.00	
5510-161-03-0000	Non-Inst Sal-Trans-EXTRA	2,500.00	25,237.20	27,737.20	15,403.56	0.00	12,333.64	
5510-162-03-0000	Salaries Drivers	322,972.00	23,957.90	346,929.90	205,666.83	143,136.57	-1,873.50	
5510-163-03-0000	Salaries Driver Substitut	37,524.00	-26,556.07	10,967.93	6,412.93	0.00	4,555.00	
5510-164-03-0000	Salaries Special Trips	2,500.00	6,291.36	8,791.36	4,323.36	0.00	4,468.00	
5510-165-03-0000	Salaries-Field Trips	10,000.00	-2,600.00	7,400.00	359.64	0.00	7,040.36	
5510-166-03-0000	Sal Athletic Trips	15,000.00	0.00	15,000.00	7,963.85	0.00	7,036.15	
5510-168-03-0000	Bus Monitors	58,865.00	813.74	59,678.74	35,741.90	23,890.34	46.50	
5510-168-03-0040	Bus Monitors	0.00	29,226.57	29,226.57	16,749.65	0.00	12,476.92	
5510-169-03-0000	Bus Monitor Substitutes	500.00	0.00	500.00	0.00	0.00	500.00	
5510-180-03-0000	Salaries Mechanics	63,537.00	3,740.37	67,277.37	42,073.73	25,203.64	0.00	
5510-181-03-0000	Salaries Mechanics Over-T	7,220.00	0.00	7,220.00	6,313.92	0.00	906.08	
5510-200-03-0000	Equipment	5,000.00	-3,105.00	1,895.00	1,895.00	0.00	0.00	
5510-210-03-0000	Bus Purchasing	144,192.00	0.00	144,192.00	100,000.00	0.00	44,192.00	
5510-400-03-2900	Contractual Expense	49,000.00	11,603.26	60,603.26	25,218.21	32,198.76	3,186.29	
5510-430-03-0000	Liability Insurance	28,262.00	-4,266.00	23,996.00	22,745.00	1,251.00	0.00	
5510-431-03-0000	Workmens Compensation	15,000.00	-1,500.00	13,500.00	9,024.42	4,475.58	0.00	
5510-450-03-3000	Materials & Supplies	8,000.00	1,580.56	9,580.56	4,911.00	4,439.20	230.36	
5510-452-03-0000	Tools	2,000.00	423.20	2,423.20	2,196.71	226.49	0.00	
5510-455-03-0000	Supplies Parts	37,000.00	0.00	37,000.00	14,609.88	21,732.86	657.26	
5510-456-03-0000	Gasoline	105,000.00	-23,100.00	81,900.00	56,266.45	25,183.55	450.00	
5510-457-03-0000	Oil	5,000.00	0.00	5,000.00	1,691.78	3,308.22	0.00	
5510-458-03-0000	Tires	14,500.00	-5,003.76	9,496.24	7,063.40	2,432.84	0.00	
5530-200-03-0000	Equipment	2,200.00	-901.18	1,298.82	0.00	0.00	1,298.82	
5530-400-03-0000	Contractual Expense	750.00	64,868.00	65,618.00	4,022.28	61,595.72	0.00	
5530-401-03-0000	Telephone	2,800.00	-2,230.00	570.00	315.67	254.33	0.00	
5530-450-03-0000	Supplies	750.00	17,249.60	17,999.60	15,291.87	2,707.73	0.00	
5530-461-03-0000	Natural Gas	14,000.00	0.00	14,000.00	6,347.51	7,643.49	9.00	
5530-462-03-0000	Garage Building Water	4,000.00	935.12	4,935.12	753.97	3,569.42	611.73	
5530-463-03-0000	Electricity	8,300.00	-1,250.00	7,050.00	2,204.84	4,465.16	380.00	
5540-400-00-0000	CONTRACT TRANSPORTATION	4,000.00	-1,900.00	2,100.00	595.08	1,504.92	0.00	
7140-160-00-0000	Salaries, Non-Instr	2,000.00	0.00	2,000.00	1,251.55	0.00	748.45	
7140-400-00-0000	Contractual Exp	500.00	0.00	500.00	0.00	0.00	500.00	
7140-450-00-0000	Materials and Supplies	400.00	0.00	400.00	0.00	0.00	400.00	

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020 Fund: A GENERAL FUND

Year-to-Date **Encumbrance Unencumbered** Initial Current Description Balance **Budget Account** Appropriation Adjustments Appropriation **Expenditures** Outstanding 9010-800-00-0000 State Retirement 445,152.00 -58,200.00 386,952.00 132,565.53 85,909.52 168,476.95 9020-800-00-0000 Teacher Retirement 912,000.00 -187,849.00 724,151.00 257,392.83 275,124.94 191,633.23 -17.000.00 708,000.00 291,333.36 106,119.83 9030-800-00-0000 Social Security 725,000.00 310,546.81 53,471.58 9040-800-00-0000 Workmens Compensation 80,000.00 0.00 80,000.00 26,528.42 0.00 **Unemployment Insurance** 66,000.00 0.00 66,000.00 1,587.98 0.00 64,412.02 9050-800-00-0000 9060-800-00-0000 **Health Insurance** 2,900,000.00 50,000.00 2,950,000.00 1,792,414.83 960,737.25 196,847.92 9060-800-00-0001 **Dental Insurance** 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 51,344.85 23,655.15 0.00 1,000.00 9060-800-00-0002 Vision Insurance 1.000.00 0.00 1.000.00 0.00 0.00 Health Ins Buy-Out 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 16,233.81 0.00 23,766.19 9060-800-00-0003 9060-800-00-0004 Medical Reimb - Teachers 80,000.00 0.00 80,000.00 35,253.81 42.596.19 2,150.00 Medical Reimb - Sup Staff 70,000.00 0.00 70,000.00 13,426.63 55,843.37 730.00 9060-800-00-0005 139,390.67 0.00 -58,315.67 9089-800-00-0000 Other Benefits 90,000.00 -8.925.00 81,075.00 Serial Bonds Principal 0.00 1,735,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,735,000.00 9711-600-00-0000 1.735.000.00 9711-700-00-0000 Serial Bonds Interest 497,513.00 0.00 497,513.00 248,756.25 0.00 248,756.75 115,000.00 Statutory Bonds-Buses 115,000.00 0.00 115,000.00 0.00 0.00 9722-600-00-0000 0.00 1,597.12 9722-700-00-0000 Stat Bond-Int Buses 3,194.00 0.00 3,194.00 1,596.88 25,000.00 9901-931-00-0000 Inter fund to School Lunc 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 9901-950-00-0000 Interfund Transfer-Sp.Aid 26,000.00 0.00 26,000.00 0.00 0.00 26,000.00 9950-900-00-0000 **Transfer To Capital** 100,000.00 249,898.83 349,898.83 114,628.01 0.00 235,270.82 **Total GENERAL FUND** 20,699,767.00 571,952.02 21,271,719.02 9,446,681.80 7,591,708.57 4,233,328.65

Naples Central School District SCHOOL LUNCH FUND Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020 Cycle 07 Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

G/L Account	Description		Debits	Credits
		Assets		
200.00	Cash-Five Star Bank		72,928.90	
380.00	Accounts Receivable		60.00	
410.00	Due From State and Federal - L		19,573.00	
445.00	Inv. of Mat. & Supplies (Opt)		1,312.32	
446.00	Surplus Food Inventory		4,954.46	
446.10	Purchased Food Inventory		3,138.77	
		Budgetary and Expense Accounts		
522.00	Expenditures		190,272.36	
		Liabilities and Reserves		
601.01	Prepaid School Lunch Funds			6,444.80
630.10	Due To Gen from Cafe			115,514.41
631.00	Due To Other Governments			245.27
691.00	Deferred Revenues			550.00
806.00	Non Spendable FB-Inventory			9,405.55
•••••	····· - ······························	Budgetary and Revenue Accounts		
980.00	Revenues			160,079.78
		Grand Totals	292,239.81	292,239.81

The reporting period selected for this report includes an accounting cycle that is not closed and information is therefore subject to change. No accounting cycles have been closed for this fund in this fiscal year.

* - To include Budgetary entries for the current month, run the report through the last day of the cycle

Page 2

February 25, 2020 09:59:11 am

Naples Central School District

Revenue Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020

Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: C SCHOOL LUNCH FUND

Revenue Account	Subfund	Description	Original Estimate	Current Estimate	Year-to-Date	Current Cycle	Anticipated Balance	Excess Revenue
1440.000		Sale Reimbursable Meals -	65,000.00	65,000.00	34,040.50	6,732.95	30,959.50	
1445.000		OTHER CAFETERIA SALES	60,000.00	60,000.00	31,842.47	5,409.76	28,157.53	
2401.000		Interest and Earnings	10.00	10.00	20.38	2.75		10.38
2770.000		UNCLASSIFIED REVENUES	1,000.00	1,000.00	562.43	132.74	437.57	
3103.000		BOCES Aid (Sect 3609a Ed	16,450.00	16,450.00	0.00	0.00	16,450.00	
3190.000		State Reimbursement-LUNCH	4,700.00	4,700.00	2,506.00	516.00	2,194.00	
3190.00B		State REIMBURSE-Breakfast	2,300.00	2,300.00	1,145.00	265.00	1,155.00	
4190.000		Fed Reimbursement lunch	130,000.00	130,000.00	69,362.00	14,254.00	60,638.00	
4190.00B		Federal Reimbursement Bre	41,000.00	41,000.00	20,601.00	4,538.00	20,399.00	
4190.SUR		Federal Surplus Food	25,000.00	25,000.00	0.00	0.00	25,000.00	
5031.000		Transfer from Gen Fund	25,000.00	25,000.00	0.00	0.00	25,000.00	
Total SCHOOL LUNCH	FUND		370,460.00	370,460.00	160,079.78	31,851.20	210,390.60	10.38

* Estimated revenue for Carryover Encumbrances from the prior fiscal year will not be realized. These are estimates to balance the budget

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020

Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: C SCHOOL LUNCH FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
2860-160-00	Lunch Personnel Services	108,360.00	-11,600.00	96,760.00	45,207.18	41,494.90	10,057.92	
2860-161-00	Extra and OT Hours	0.00	7,200.00	7,200.00	3,711.55	0.00	3,488.45	
2860-163-00	Salaries Substitutes	500.00	4,400.00	4,900.00	3,436.22	0.00	1,463.78	
2860-400-00	Contractual Expenses	51,000.00	-8,500.00	42,500.00	23,811.29	12,104.85	6,583.86	
2860-410-00	Food Purchases	121,000.00	15,000.00	136,000.00	70,126.30	65,100.14	773.56	
2860-411-00	Surplus Foods	25,000.00	-15,000.00	10,000.00	0.00	0.00	10,000.00	
2860-450-00	Lunch Material & Supllies	1,100.00	8,500.00	9,600.00	3,414.26	6,115.38	70.36	
9010-800-00	Employee Retirement	12,000.00	0.00	12,000.00	6,403.62	5,363.15	233.23	
9030-800-00	Lunch Social Security	7,500.00	0.00	7,500.00	3,723.86	3,174.35	601.79	
9060-800-00	Health Insurance	44,000.00	0.00	44,000.00	30,438.08	9,987.60	3,574.32	
Total SCHOOL LUNCH FU	ND	370,460.00	0.00	370,460.00	190,272.36	143,340.37	36,847.27	

Page 3

SPECIAL AID FUND Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020 Cycle 07 Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

Summary - All Services

G/L Account	Description		Debits	Credits
.		Assets		
200.0A	5* Bank Sp Aide Ck.		165,114.03	
391.GF	Due From GENERAL FUND		121,324.23	
		Budgetary and Expense Accounts		
522.00	Expenditures		254,079.86	
		Liabilities and Reserves		
630.00	DUE TO GENERAL FUND			425,411.65
689.00	Other Liabilities (Specify)			2,279.28
917.00	Unassigned Fund Balance			0.39
		Budgetary and Revenue Accounts		
980.00	Revenues			112,826.80
		Grand Totals	540,518.12	540,518.12

The reporting period selected for this report includes an accounting cycle that is not closed and information is therefore subject to change. No accounting cycles have been closed for this fund in this fiscal year.

* - To include Budgetary entries for the current month, run the report through the last day of the cycle

February 25, 2020 09:59:11 am

Naples Central School District

Revenue Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: F SPECIAL AID FUND

Revenue Account	Subfund	Description	Original Estimate	Current Estimate	Year-to-Date	Current Cycle	Anticipated Balance	Excess Revenue
19S611-4256.000	19S611	Indiv. w/Disab. Ed Act (I	0.00	0.00	-827.20	0.00	827.20	
20PREK-3289.000	20PREK	Other State Aid	0.00	0.00	22,994.00	0.00		22,994.00
20S611-4256.000	20\$611	Indiv. w/Disab. Ed Act (I	0.00	0.00	38,148.00	0.00		38,148.00
20S619-4256.000	20\$619	Indiv. w/Disab. Ed Act (I	0.00	0.00	1,050.00	0.00		1,050.00
20TIIA-4289.000	20TIIA	Other Federal Aid TTLEIIA	0.00	0.00	6,650.00	6,650.00		6,650.00
20TIVA-4129.000	20TIVA	NCLB Title IV Safe & Drug	0.00	0.00	3,142.00	0.00		3,142.00
20TTLI-4126.000	20TTLI	NCLB Chpt 1, Basic Grant	0.00	0.00	41,670.00	41,670.00		41,670.00
Total SPECIAL AID FUN	۱D		0.00	0.00	112,826.80	48,320.00	827.20	113,654.00

* Estimated revenue for Carryover Encumbrances from the prior fiscal year will not be realized.

These are estimates to balance the budget

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: F SPECIAL AID FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
19S611-2250-400	Contractual and Other	0.00	0.00	0.00	-827.20	0.00	827.20	
19TIIA-2110-150	Instructional Salaries	8.67	0.00	8.67	0.00	0.00	8.67	
19TIVA-2110-150	Instructional Salaries	7.98	0.00	7.98	0.00	0.00	7.98	
19TTLI-2110-150	Instructional Salaries	9.19	0.00	9.19	0.00	0.00	9.19	
19TTLI-2110-400	Contractual and Other	4,138.00	0.00	4,138.00	0.00	0.00	4,138.00	
20PREK-2510-150	Instructional Salaries	45,208.00	0.00	45,208.00	18,327.20	24,882.50	1,998.30	
20PREK-2510-450	Materials & Supplies	780.00	0.00	780.00	0.00	0.00	780.00	
20S611-2250-150	611-Instructional Salary	186,202.00	0.00	186,202.00	74,820.97	107,308.55	4,072.48	
20S611-2250-400	Contractual Sect 611 Idea	4,542.00	0.00	4,542.00	2,528.33	0.00	2,013.67	
20S619-2250-160	Non Instructional Salarie	1,749.00	0.00	1,749.00	969.56	838.42	-58.98	
20S619-2250-400	Contractual Idea Sect 619	3,504.00	0.00	3,504.00	0.00	0.00	3,504.00	
20SUMM-2253-150	4408 SUMMER SCHOOL INSTRU	0.00	0.00	0.00	23,610.82	948.34	-24,559.16	
20SUMM-2253-160	4408 SUMMER SCH SUPPORT S	0.00	0.00	0.00	10,510.48	155.95	-10,666.43	
20SUMM-2253-400	4408 summer Contractual	0.00	0.00	0.00	6,100.00	0.00	-6,100.00	
20SUMM-5511-160	4408 Summer School Nonins	0.00	0.00	0.00	19,020.57	3,243.99	-22,264.56	
20TIIA-2110-150	Instructional Salaries	33,250.00	0.00	33,250.00	15,235.10	18,014.90	0.00	
20TIVA-2110-150	Instructional Salaries	15,710.00	0.00	15,710.00	7,202.10	8,507.90	0.00	
20TTLI-2110-150	Instructional Salaries	204,524.00	0.00	204,524.00	76,581.93	124,751.18	3,190.89	
20TTLI-2110-400	Contractual and Other	3,828.00	0.00	3,828.00	0.00	0.00	3,828.00	
Total SPECIAL AID FUND		503,460.84	0.00	503,460.84	254,079.86	288,651.73	-39,270.75	

Page 4

CAPITAL FUND Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020 Cycle 07 Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

G/L Account	Description	Debits	Credits
	Assets		
200.0A	JP Chase Cap. Checking	252,229.48	
200.0B	JPChase Cap.Sav.	16,296.70	
	Budgetary and Expense Account	nts	
522.00	Expenditures	3,179,110.26	
	Liabilities and Reserves		
630.00	Due To Other Funds		4,810,000.00
630.01	DUE TO DEBT SERVICE		5,669.70
915.01	ASS.UNAP.FB RES FOR CAPITAL	1,482,661.27	
	Budgetary and Revenue Accou	nts	
980.00	Revenues		114,628.01
	Grand Totals	4,930,297.71	4,930,297.71

The reporting period selected for this report includes an accounting cycle that is not closed and information is therefore subject to change. No accounting cycles have been closed for this fund in this fiscal year.

* - To include Budgetary entries for the current month, run the report through the last day of the cycle

February 25, 2020 09:59:11 am

Naples Central School District

Revenue Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: H CAPITAL FUND

Revenue Account	Subfund	Description	Original Estimate	Current Estimate	Year-to-Date	Current Cycle	Anticipated Balance	Excess Revenue
DWB08X-5031.000	DWB08	Interfund Transfers	0.00	0.00	114,628.01	114,628.01		114,628.01
Total CAPITAL FUND			0.00	0.00	114,628.01	114,628.01	0.00	114,628.01

* Estimated revenue for Carryover Encumbrances from the prior fiscal year will not be realized. These are estimates to balance the budget

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020 Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: H CAPITAL FUND

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
170000-1620-293-01	General Contr - D'Agostin	1,797,391.49	0.00	1,797,391.49	1,470,842.41	0.00	326,549.08	
170000-1620-294-01	HVAC - HMI Mechanical	396,516.25	0.00	396,516.25	305,140.00	0.00	91,376.25	
170000-1620-295-01	PLUMBING - Bell Mechanica	351,309.85	0.00	351,309.85	261,834.25	0.00	89,475.60	
170000-1620-296-00	ELECTRICAL	-73,055.00	0.00	-73,055.00	5,845.00	0.00	-78,900.00	
170000-1620-296-01	ELECTRICAL - Blackmon Far	389,470.00	0.00	389,470.00	301,756.29	0.00	87,713.71	
170000-1620-299-00	NON-CONTRACTUAL	-10,818.86	10,430.00	-388.86	10,430.00	0.00	-10,818.86	
170000-2110-201-00	Clerk of Works	71,015.17	0.00	71,015.17	72,151.85	0.00	-1,136.68	
170000-2110-240-00	Contractual and Other	1,479,888.96	11,079.42	1,490,968.38	0.00	0.00	1,490,968.38	
170000-2110-244-00	LEGAL SERVICES	6,501.64	0.00	6,501.64	0.00	0.00	6,501.64	
170000-2110-245-00	Architects Commisions/Exp	19,148.98	0.00	19,148.98	19,449.99	0.00	-301.01	
170000-2110-245-21	Architects Reimbursable C	-54,371.90	0.00	-54,371.90	96.31	0.00	-54,468.21	
170000-2110-246-00	SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING	-77,020.50	6,427.85	-70,592.65	7,499.50	0.00	-78,092.15	
170000-2110-291-00	Site Aquisition Costs	-58,301.00	0.00	-58,301.00	0.00	0.00	-58,301.00	
170000-2110-297-00	Site Contractor	-854,394.85	0.00	-854,394.85	71,803.15	0.00	-926,198.00	
170000-2110-297-01	Site Contractor - Nardozz	682,265.50	0.00	682,265.50	537,633.50	0.00	144,632.00	
180000-1620-200-00	Technology Equipment	3,100.05	0.00	3,100.05	0.00	0.00	3,100.05	
180000-1620-293-00	Frontrunner	15,758.16	0.00	15,758.16	0.00	0.00	15,758.16	
180000-1620-294-00	Day Automation	8,431.25	0.00	8,431.25	0.00	0.00	8,431.25	
180000-1620-450-00	Supplies	-333.73	0.00	-333.73	0.00	0.00	-333.73	
DWB08X-5510-210-00	Buses	0.00	0.00	0.00	114,628.01	0.00	-114,628.01	
Total CAPITAL FUND		4,092,501.46	27,937.27	4,120,438.73	3,179,110.26	0.00	941,328.47	

Naples Central School District TRUST & AGENCY FUND Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020 Cycle 07 Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

G/L Account	Description	Debits	Credits					
	Assets							
200.0A	Cash- 5* TRUST & AGENCY CK.	288,062.15						
200.30	RESTRICTED CASH-EXTRA CURRICUL	113,139.85						
200.PA	Net Payroll - 5* Bank	831.66						
201.00	HRA CHECKING	51,731.47						
380.00	Accounts Receivable	330.05						
380.AR	ACCTS REC HEALTH INS		5.02					
380.HL	ACCTS REC RETIRED HEALTH		803,252.78					
Liabilities and Reserves								
018.SR	Support Retirement	26.17						
020.00	Health Ins. Bc/Bs		3,826.15					
020.10	HRA Bancard		51,699.77					
020.DN	Bc/Bs Dental S S	89.69						
020.FD	Bc/Bs Flex Dental S.S.		3,457.72					
020.RT	Health Ins. Bc/Bs RETIREES	708,786.62						
022.99	1099R Federal Inc. Tax With	47.03						
085.00	EXTRA CURRICULAR BALANCES		113,139.85					
630.00	Due To General fund		735.91					
630.PR	Due To GEN FUND - PAYROLL		5.58					
630.TA	Due To GEN FUND - TRUST AND A		186,662.37					
630.TH	DUE TO GEN FUND (HEALTH INS.)		259.54					
	Grand Totals	1,163,044.69	1,163,044.69					

The reporting period selected for this report includes an accounting cycle that is not closed and information is therefore subject to change. No accounting cycles have been closed for this fund in this fiscal year.

* - To include Budgetary entries for the current month, run the report through the last day of the cycle

Page 7

Page 8

TRUST FUNDS-EXPENDABLE Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020 Cycle 07

Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

G/L Account	Description	Debits	Credits
	Assets		
200.0A	Cash- FIVE STAR CK	3,627.29	
200.0B	5*Bank Exp. Tr. Sav.	165,563.57	
489.TN	DUE FROM PN	2.57	
	Budgetary and Expense Acc	ounts	
		4,000.00	
522.00	Expenditures		
	Liabilities and Reserve	S	470.5
910.00	Appropriated Fund Balance		170.5
924.01	GIFT FUND		5.5
924.02	WM Borden		658.8
924.03	Charles Dubler		4,262.2
924.04	Jos. Borden		7,768.2
924.05	Mina Guile		85,975.2
924.06	Ethel Gray		811.5
924.09	Henry Miller		60.1
24.11	Anthony Parlave		550.6
924.12	Betty Widmer		129.7
924.14	Ira Randall		212.5
924.15	Karen Potter		6,263.2
924.16	Douglas Potter		6,366.2
24.20	Miller / Shannon		858.3
24.23	Sansocie		28,762.3
24.24	Class of 1960		1,217.3
24.38	Misel Memorial		63.4
24.39	Cheryl Crum Memorial		9.9
24.40	Clair Elliott Memorial		23.9
24.41	Al Wordingham Scholarship		1,268.9
24.42	Doc & Katy Abraham Memorial		40.9
24.43	OLYMPICS OF THE MIND		2,818.7
)24.44	STAFF SENIOR SCOLARSHIP		253.9
924.46	Robert Miller		336.1
924.48	James Meehan		2.3
924.48 924.49	ROGER COYE		53.2
924.49 924.50	FFA-SCHULTZ MEM. FUND		1,195.0
924.50 924.51	HOWSE MEMORIAL FUND		2,407.7
	CAROL HOLCOM SCOTT MEMORIAL		5,004.8
924.52			1,605.8
924.53			5.2
924.54	JOSHUA CALLAGHAN		31.2
924.55			2,009.8
924.57	STEWART FLEISCHMAN		503.9
924.58			1,001.4
924.59			2,557.0
924.61			930.6
924.62	Miscellaneous Scholarship		1,000.3
924.69	Cathy Ringer Mem Scholarship		0.2
924.70	FLACE-Harriet Goodsell	700.32	0.1
924.71	Joseph Family Scholarship	100.52	1,250.2
924.72	Madeline Jean Barton Memorial		3,771.8
924.73	Maddie Barton Elem Music Award		0,771.0
	Budgetary and Revenue Acc	counts	
980.00	Revenues		1,673.6

TRUST FUNDS-EXPENDABLE Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020

Cycle 07

Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

G/L Account Description			Debits	Credits	
 		Grand Totals	173,893.75	173,893.75	

The reporting period selected for this report includes an accounting cycle that is not closed and information is therefore subject to change. No accounting cycles have been closed for this fund in this fiscal year.

* - To include Budgetary entries for the current month, run the report through the last day of the cycle

February 25, 2020 09:59:11 am

Naples Central School District

Revenue Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020

Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: TE TRUST FUNDS-EXPENDABLE

Revenue Account	Subfund	Description	Original Estimate	Current Estimate	Year-to-Date	Current Cycle	Anticipated Balance	Excess Revenue
SCHOLR-2401.000	SCHOLR	Interest and Earnings	0.00	0.00	18.68	0.18		18.68
SCHOLR-2705.041	SCHOLR	Doc & Katy Abraham Memorial Aw	0.00	0.00	1,000.00	0.00		1,000.00
SCHOLR-2705.050	SCHOLR	JOSHUA CALLAGHAN MEMORIAL	0.00	0.00	100.00	0.00		100.00
SCHOLR-2705.067	SCHOLR	COACH G. SCHENK MEMORIAL	0.00	0.00	250.00	0.00		250.00
SCHOLR-2705.073	SCHOLR	Maddie Barton Elem Music Award	0.00	0.00	305.00	15.00		305.00
Total TRUST FUNDS-E	XPENDABLE		0.00	0.00	1,673.68	15.18	0.00	1,673.68

* Estimated revenue for Carryover Encumbrances from the prior fiscal year will not be realized. These are estimates to balance the budget

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020

Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: TE TRUST FUNDS-EXPENDABLE

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding		
SCHOLR-2999-459	NAPLES HISTORICAL SOCIETY	0.00	0.00	0.00	1,000.00	0.00	-1,000.00	
SCHOLR-2999-469	Cathy Ringer Memorial Sch	0.00	0.00	0.00	1,000.00	0.00	-1,000.00	
SCHOLR-2999-472	Madeline Jean Barton Memo	0.00	0.00	0.00	750.00	0.00	-750.00	
SCHOLR-2999-473	Maddie Barton Elem Music	0.00	0.00	0.00	1,250.00	1,270.00	-2,520.00	
Total TRUST FUNDS-EXPENDABLE		0.00	0.00	0.00	4,000.00	1,270.00	-5,270.00	

Page 6

PERMANENT FUND Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020 Cycle 07 Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

Description	Debits	Credits
Assets		
Cash- Five Star Bank	10,253.36	
Liabilities and Rese	rves	
DUE TO TE		2.57
C. Misel MemNon Spendable		10,250.79
Grand Totals	10,253.36	10,253.36
	Assets Cash- Five Star Bank Liabilities and Rese DUE TO TE C. Misel MemNon Spendable	Assets Cash- Five Star Bank 10,253.36 Liabilities and Reserves DUE TO TE C. Misel MemNon Spendable

The reporting period selected for this report includes an accounting cycle that is not closed and information is therefore subject to change. No accounting cycles have been closed for this fund in this fiscal year.

* - To include Budgetary entries for the current month, run the report through the last day of the cycle

DEBT SERVICE Trial Balance for Fiscal Year 2020 Cycle 07 Post Dates From 07/01/2019 To 01/31/2020

G/L Account	Description		Debits	Credits
		Assets		
200.0A	JP Chase Debt Ser. Sav.		486,759.91	
391.01	Due From Other Funds-Capital		5,669.70	
		Budgetary and Expense Accounts		
522.00	Expenditures		150,000.00	
		Liabilities and Reserves		
884.00	Reserve for Debt			641,788.35
		Budgetary and Revenue Accounts		
980.00	Revenues			641.26
900.00	Nevenue3	Grand Totals	642,429.61	642,429.61

The reporting period selected for this report includes an accounting cycle that is not closed and information is therefore subject to change. No accounting cycles have been closed for this fund in this fiscal year.

* - To include Budgetary entries for the current month, run the report through the last day of the cycle

February 25, 2020 09:59:11 am

Naples Central School District

Revenue Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020

Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: V DEBT SERVICE

Revenue Account	Subfund	Description	Original Estimate	Current Estimate	Year-to-Date	Current Cycle	Anticipated Balance	Excess Revenue
2401.000		Interest and Earnings	0.00	0.00	641.26	78.07		641.26
Total DEBT SERVICE			0.00	0.00	641.26	78.07	0.00	641.26

Selection Criteria

Criteria Name: Last Run As Of Date: 01/31/2020 Suppress revenue accounts with no activity Show Actual revenue in 'As Of' cycle Show special revenue accounts 5997-5999 Sort by: Fund/Revenue Account Printed by Norma Lewis

* Estimated revenue for Carryover Encumbrances from the prior fiscal year will not be realized. These are estimates to balance the budget

Budget Status Report As Of: 01/31/2020

Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund: V DEBT SERVICE

Budget Account	Description	Initial Appropriation	Adjustments	Current Appropriation	Year-to-Date Expenditures	Encumbrance Outstanding	Unencumbered Balance	
9901-900	Other Interfund Transfers	0.00	0.00	0.00	150,000.00	0.00	-150,000.00	
Total DEBT SERVICE		0.00	0.00	0.00	150,000.00	0.00	-150,000.00	